Web Portal User Manual





Business Process and Performance Management System

Contents

Introduction
Chapter 1. ELMA Web Application
Chapter 2. Managing accounts5
User License Types6
Importing from LDAP8
User Page11
Chapter 3. Access to the System15
User Authorization
Authorization by Certificate16
Single Sign On
Trusted Devices
Chapter 4. Organizing a Shared Workspace22
Messages
Public Channels25
Interfaces
E-Mail Interface
ELMA Agent
Chapter 5. Employee Schedule Compliance
User tasks
Task Control
My Department41
Reports42
Chapter 6. Activity Planning
User Calendar47
Common Calendars51
Examples of Business Processes55
Chapter 7. Time Report and Monitoring60
Configure the Time Report Module62

Time Report Objects	65
Occupation	67
Adding Time Report for Tasks	69
Submitting a Time Report	72
Time Report Approval	78
Chapter 8. Company	81
Chapter 9. Substitutions and Absence Schedule	83
Chapter 10. Document Storage	86
Chapter 11. CRM	87
Chapter 12. Web Portal Customization	89
Chapter 13. Useful References	90

Introduction

This book is a quick-start manual for **ELMA Web Portal**, one of the basic components of the system, which allows you to create a corporate portal basing on **ELMA BPM Platform**. This book is intended for users who want to master **ELMA BPM** on their own, and for professionals who plan to implement **ELMA**. The main goal of the book is to give a basic understanding of how to work with the **Web Portal**.

It is expected that you are already familiar with the basic **ELMA** functions described in the **ELMA BPM Platform quick-start manual**, and that the system is installed and ready for work, including the organization structure and set of users (the **ELMA BPM Platform** manual provides instructions on how to do that).

Below is the list of quick-start manuals:

- User Manual of **ELMA BPM Platform**
- User Manual of ELMA Web Portal
- User Manual of **ELMA ECM+**
- User Manual of ELMA CRM+
- User Manual of ELMA Projects+
- User Manual of **ELMA KPI**

For more details on the Web Portal functions, see ELMA Help.

The **ELMA Knowledge Base** (<u>http://www.elma-bpm.com/kb/</u>) provides a description of numerous technical issues and is constantly updated by the company's specialists.

This book is a tutorial rather than a reference guide; it gradually describes the main functions and settings of the **ELMA Web Portal**. Before you start to read this manual, we recommend you to get acquainted with the **ELMA BPM Platform quick-start manual** which offers a basic understanding of the system.

Chapter 1. ELMA Web Application

ELMA Web Portal, or **ELMA Web Application**, is one of the key system components; it is a workspace for all users.

Here, you can exchange messages, make assignments, start and complete business process tasks, manage the calendar, documentation, entities and reports, manage time reports, create and store contactor's profiles and deals, record and plan any communications and do other numerous activities.

Additional applications for **ELMA**, such as **ELMA Projects+** and **ELMA CRM+**, add new sections and capabilities in the **ELMA Web Application**.

Once you enter **ELMA Web Application**, you find yourself on the main page, which displays links to the main system sections, user menu, set of main pages and portlets. The set of available sections and actions depends on the current user's access permissions. In these sections, the user can find all the necessary information and perform activities related to his or her duties.

ELMA lets you customize user interfaces to make interaction with the system more efficient.

Chapter 2. Managing accounts

This chapter gives a description of user license types and ways to manage the **ELMA** user accounts.

A user is an employee who uses **ELMA** functions to perform their work duties.

A user account contains all the information required to authenticate the user in the system and provide access to their personal data and settings.

ELMA allows to create accounts both manually (described in the <u>ELMA BPM Platform</u> <u>Quick-Start Manual</u> and in **ELMA Help**) and by importing users form **LDAP**, (for more details, see section 2.2 of the given manual). The accounts are managed by the **ELMA** Administrator.

User License Types

A User License determined the rights of a user to work in **ELMA Web Application** with their own login and password.

ELMA features named licenses, which limit the number of unblocked users in **ELMA**. Each user takes one named license. In order to make a license available, you can block a certain user who will then not be able to enter the system and work in the **Web Application**.

You can find general information about the licenses in **Administration** \rightarrow **Main Page** \rightarrow **License Information** (Fig.1). For more details, see **Administration** \rightarrow **System** \rightarrow **Components** (Fig.2).

		Administrator ?
Administration	: License Information	a. Users
Main Page	Version: 3.8.0.23003 Expr ELMA Site	User List Substitutions
2 Users	Number of licenses: 100, u How to Buy + Prices Components	Group List Active Users Absence Schedule
🖧 System		
Basic Applications	Basic Applications	🧔 System Settings
Portal Settings	Common Calendars Reports	General Settings Calendar Settings
📄 Document Management	Public Channels	
🚱 Business Processes	e.	
a CRM+	📁 🗀 Document Management	E-Mail Notifications Settings General Settings of the 'KPL Time Report

Fig. 1. Administration \rightarrow Main Page \rightarrow License Information



Fig. 2. Administration \rightarrow System \rightarrow Components

If you wish to activate additional **ELMA** licenses, contact your sales officer or **ELMA** partner and provide the number of additional licenses required, the registration key and the server token. Once the additional licenses are paid for, you will receive an activation key. Then go to **Administration** \rightarrow **System** \rightarrow **Components** (Fig.2), click **Add Key** and enter the key in the window provided (Fig.3).



Fig. 3. Administration \rightarrow System \rightarrow Components, Add Key button

In case of competitive licenses, the **User Authorization Session** (Fig.4) section will be rather interesting for the system administrator. It displays information about the registered sessions of active users and allows to delete sessions to make licenses available. For this section, go to **Administration** \rightarrow **Users** and click on **Active Users**.

update 4					Administrator
User Authorization Sessi	ons				
Username		IP Address	Authorized On	Last Response	Last User Action
X Administrator ELMA X		:1	11/11/2015 7:19 AM	11/11/2015 9:48 AM	11/11/2015 9:44 AM StartInfo.aspx? ReturnUrl=%2tSDK.Action%2tPing%2tPing%3f_%3d1447235078098
	×●	91.217.196.5	11/11/2015 5:06 AM	11/11/2015 9:48 AM	11/11/2015 9:47 AM SDK.Action/Images/StoreComponent? Componentid=EleWise.ELMA.Documents.Contracts&Version=3.8.0.23242
					Page generated for 1701 ms ELMA v 3.8.0.23242 R 35a24d13624e60

Fig. 4. Authorized Users' Sessions

When there are no responses for a certain time interval, the active session expires. The time interval is set in **System Security Settings**, which you can find in **Administration** \rightarrow **System**.

Importing from LDAP

If your company uses an **LDAP** sever (e.g., Active Directory or 389 Directory Server), you can add user data from the **LDAP** catalog and set a **Single Sign On** in **ELMA**.

To import users from LDAP go to Administration \rightarrow System \rightarrow System Settings and then to the LDAP Integration section (Fig.5). The user settings are managed by the ELMA system administrator, and so is the data import from LDAP.

LDAP Integration		J.
Server Address	192.178.13.2	
Authorization Type	Base	
LDAP Active Directory Path	dc=users	
Login Parameter	AccountName	
Parameter "Name"	givenName	
Parameter "Surname"	Surname	
Parameter "Second Name / Patronym"	initials	
Parameter "Email"	e-mail	
User	cn=LDAP Auth	
Authorization Filter	solutions{login}	
Additional Filter for User Import	(objectClass=person)	

Fig. 5. Example of settings for the LDAP Integration

Fig. shows an example of settings for the **LDAP Integration** section. For a detailed description of all the fields, see **ELMA Help**.

Once the **LDAP Integration** section is configured, you can import users from **LDAP**. To do so, go to **Administration** \rightarrow **Users** (Fig. 6) and click on **Import** \rightarrow **Users from LDAP**. Once you do that, the **Import from LDAP** page will open (Fig. 7).

When importing from **LDAP** (Fig.8) the first thing to do is to assign groups for all the imported users (the default group is **All Users**, but you can change it) and click **Search**.

O Nov 11 Wednesday	H Add Us	er Import Active Users	Administrator
Administration	User List	Users from LDAP	
Main Page			V 🖳 Q Search
🎥 Users			
Users			Quantity: 5 🗸 Items found: 27 Pages: 1 <u>2</u> <u>3</u> <u>6</u>
Absence Schedule	admin		
Access Settings	a keller	Keller Carl	Head of Service Department, Technologist
R. System	anelson		Chief Technology Officer
- System	🔰 🚨 brooks		Chief Executive Officer
Basic Applications	a rodriguez	Rodriguez Anne	
式 Portal Settings			
Document Management			
🚱 Business Processes			
CRM+			
Projects+			
🕞 крі			
😥 Calendar			

Fig. 6. User Import from LDAP

Hereit Back			9	Adr	ninistrator	?
Import fromLDAP)					
Start your work with findin	ig users in LDAP				Q	Search
> The groups to which the	e selected users will be imported					
Login	Full Name		E-mail			
No data to display						
			Page generated t	or 500 ms EL	MA v. 3.8.0.23003 R.ab82	9546cfdfb7

Fig. 7. First phase of User Import from LDAP

If the settings for integration with **LDAP** are correct, you will see a list of users available for import (Fig.8). If you type a part of a user's login in the search filed and press **Search**, the system will offer you a list of users, whose logins contain the same combination of symbols.

Select the user that you want to import and then click **Import** in the top menu of the page. You can only import users if you have available **ELMA** licenses.

	Import	
	Import fromLDAP	
	Start your work with finding use	rs in LDAP
	> The groups to which the set	ected users will be imported
	Login	Full Name
	a.miller	Miller Adam
	brooks	Brooks Tom
	collins	Collins Earl
<	e.webb	Webb Elena
	flores	Flores Paul
	f.bailey	Bailey Frank
	odriguez	Rodriguez Ann

Fig. 8. List of users to be imported to ELMA from LDAP

When you import users for the first time, they are marked by different colors:

- Green for users who were successfully imported to **ELMA**;
- Red for users imported to **ELMA** but blocked or inactive because they cannot be authorized in the system;
- White for users who are not yet imported;
- Yellow for users that exist in both **ELMA** and the **LDAP** database, but their data differs. During the import, the user data in the system is replaced by the data from **LDAP**, including the password.

The information about personal user accounts imported from **LDAP** is not stored directly in **ELMA**. When such users sign in the system, the data that they enter is compared to the data stored in **LDAP**. The user pages of the users imported from **LDAP** are marked accordingly.

User Page

Along with the user account, **ELMA** creates a user page. The user page displays all the main information about the user and offers basic functions to manage the user's account (for the system administrator).

Any system user can see a limited version of any other user's page. It shows a photo, contact details and the user's job position (Fig.9). There are links below the photo that you can use to assign a task or activity and send a message.



	Keller Carl Head of Service P Bithday: Septe Local ELMA ac	e Department, Technologist mber 17 count (since July 24, 2015)		
 Task Message Event 	Office Phone Mobile Phone Room No.	<u>#301</u> <u>+269875647</u> 301	E-Mail Skype	<u>keller@qmail.com</u> () keller_c

Fig. 9. User page accessible to all the system users

Each user has access to their page or profile (Fig.10). According to system settings, you might or might not have the right to edit it. To view your profile, click on your surname or photo displayed in the top right corner of any page of the **Web Application**.



Fig. 10. User profile

The profile page (Fig.10) includes:

- User's personal data and contact details.
- A list of trusted devices. By clicking **Edit,** you can open the device control page.
- The **Downloads** section. It contains links to installation software for the following plugins and programs: **ELMA Agent**, **ELMA Outlook Plugin**, **ELMA Designer** (access to **ELMA Designer** required).
- The **Actions** section. It gives links to activities accessible to the current user, e.g., change password, assign absence, assign substitute user, change interface language.
- The **Security** section. It allows you to add your current browser to the list of trusted devices and permit access from trusted devices only (depends on access permissions, for more details see Chapter 3).

For a more detailed description of these capabilities, see the **ELMA Help**.

If you have permission to edit your profile, you will have the **Edit** button available. With the Edit button, you can change your personal data, choose interfaces and manage tasks and notification settings. Even the system administrator cannot change the password of a user imported from **LDAP**, since the password is not stored in **ELMA** and can only be changed in **LDAP**. Any user can edit their page and change the password by default; these permissions are managed by the system administrator.

If you want to forbid a user to change their password or edit their profile, go to **Administration** \rightarrow **Application Access Settings** \rightarrow **Global Access Settings** and add the user to the following groups: Forbid to edit personal profile or Forbid user to change password.

The Administrator or an authorized user can edit the user pages, create new users and block the existing ones. To manage accounts, go to **Administration** \rightarrow **Users** \rightarrow **User List**, here you will find a complete list of all users (by default, the blocked users are not displayed).

O Nov 11 Wednesday	← Back	Add User	Active Users	Administrator
Administration	User List			
Main Page	Count			
🍃 Users	Search			
Users	Advanced Sear	rch		
Groups				Quantity: 10 🗸 Items found: 27 Pages: 1 2 3 🚱 🏟
Substitutions	Account	User	E-Mail	Job Positions
Absence Schedule	admin 🚨	Administrator ELMA		Assign
Access Settings	a keller	Keller Carl	keller@gmail.com	Head of Service Department, Technologist
	alson 🚨	Nelson James	nelson@gmail.com	Chief Technology Officer
	🔰 🚨 brooks	Brooks Tom	brooks@gmail.com	Chief Executive Officer
Basic Applications	a rodriguez	Rodriguez Anne	rodriguez@gmail.com	HR Director, HR Manager
📆 Portal Settings	ailey 🚨	Bailey Frank	bailey@gmail.com	Chief of IT-Department, Head of Workshop No. 1
	a collins	Collins Earl	collins@gmail.com	Deputy CCO, Head of Branch Office No. 2
Document Management	a taylor	Taylor Erica	taylor@gmail.com	Sales Manager, Sales Manager of Branch Office No. 1, Sales Manager of Branch Office No. 2
🚱 Business Processes	a flores	Flores Paul	flores@gmail.com	Head of Sales Department
CRM+	a miller	Miller Adam	miller@gmail.com	Chief Commercial Officer
				Page generated for 4031 ms ELMA v. 3.8.0.23242 R.35a24d13824e50
Projects+				
🕞 KPI				
👿 Calendar				

Fig. 11. Administration \rightarrow Users section

If you click on the name in the User column, you will open the user's page or profile which contains full information about the user (Fig. 12).

A user does not have full access to their profile; they only see their user page (Fig. 12), while the Administrator has access to additional features. In the **Users** section, they can change the password (except for the users imported from **LDAP**), assign absence, add a substitution or block a user. The Administrator can also see the user's groups and privileges (access permissions for system sections and settings).

When the page is opened for editing by the Administrator, all the fields are available including for adding and deleting user from groups.



Fig. 12. User Profile opened for editing by the Administrator

Chapter 3. Access to the System

ELMA Web Application is accessible only to those users who have accounts in the system. Once authorized and signed in, they may work in **ELMA Web Application** according to their access permissions.

Authorization means that a user is identified, authenticated and provided with access permissions.

The default authorization is with login and password. You can set additional options to enhance security:

• Authorization by certificate.

• Authorization with **Single Sign On** technology (SSO). You can import users from Active Directory and use these accounts for user authentication.

• Authorization with login and password with limited access from trusted devices only.

ELMA Web Application supports the following web-browsers: Mozilla Firefox, Internet Explorer, Google Chrome and Safari.

The system administrator manages the application's access settings in the internal network and can forbid or limit access from Internet.

User Authorization

To start working in **ELMA Web Application**, enter the address or **ELMA server** name in the address bar of your browser. Then specify the port for connection to the **ELMA web-server**. Enter login and password (Fig.13) in the provided window, and click **Sign in**.

Cenc Bus Ma	siness Process nagement System
2 Username	
Password	
Remember me Sign in	•
ELMA 3.8.0.23403 R.b0a862ec797491	© ELMA 2006 - 2015

Fig. 13. Authorization window

If the login and password are correct, you access the system. Any activity within the system is matched directly to the user authorized.

If the login and password are incorrect, an error message appears and access is denied.

Authorization by Certificate

For more IT security, you can add authorization by certificate.

A **Certificate** is a document issued by a certification center confirming that the user has an open key or other specific attributes.

To make authorization by certificate available, adjust certain settings on the server (for more details, see **ELMA Help**):

• Set a certification center (you can either use your company's corporate server or turn to an organization that offers certification services);

- Receive root certificates;
- Import the certificates (external/internal) into the web-browser;
- In the Web Application, go to Administration → System → System Settings; in the Security section choose Yes in the Allow to sign in by certificate field (Fig.14).

Adjust settings on the user's PC:

- Install the CAPICOM plugin in the web-browser (if you are using Internet Explorer). Download it from the official Microsoft web-site;
- Receive user certificates;
- Import the certificates (external/internal) into the web-browser;
- Assign the certificate to the user.

User Management Settings			J
Authorized Sessions	Suspen Delete,	nd, if no response in: 3 minute(s) if no response in: 1 day(s)	
Certification-Center Server Address (used only to get thumbprint)	у		
Root Certificate Thumbprint			
Time Stamp Service Address			
Allow to sign in by certificate	Yes	Petp	
Allow to sign in by token	Yes	Help	

Fig. 14. User Management Settings

You can access **ELMA** with a certificate only in Mozilla Firefox and Internet Explorer.

Certificates are assigned to a user's PC. Once you have signed in with login and password, go to the user profile and select **Bind Certificate** in the **Users** section (Fig.15).



Fig. 15. Binding a Certificate

Business Process Management System
Enter via Token
Login with Certificate
ELMA 3.8.1.23550 R.a5ecbecd838ba7 © ELMA 2006 - 2015

To sign in with a certificate, click the key icon on the right side of the **Sign in** button in the sign-in window (Fig.13).

Fig. 16. Authorization with Certificate

For more details on certificate access, see **ELMA Help**, for additional information see **ELMA Knowledge Base**.

Single Sign On

For organizations that use an LDAP-server (e.g., Active Directory or 389 Directory Server), **ELMA** provides the **Single Sign On** authorization (SSO).

To use it, there are certain conditions that you must meet:

- **ELMA** must be installed on the **IIS server** (Internet Information Services).
- For this feature to work, all the PCs with Windows installed (including the virtual ones) must be in one domain.
- To use **Single Sign On**, users must be first imported from LDAP (see Chapter 2).
- To configure the **Single Sign On**, a user must have **IIS** administrator access permissions.

The **Single Sign On** settings for **ELMA** deployed on a server with Windows Server 2008 Enterprise are described in **Help**. On users' PCs, add **ELMA server** to Intranet and set a low security level. If **Single Sign On** is working, the **ELMA** sign-in window does not appear.

Trusted Devices

Another way to increase security in **ELMA** is allowing to enter the system from trusted devices only. Trusted devices work combined with any other **ELMA** authorization method.

Trusted devices are:

- Browsers;
- Tablets;
- Certificates;

To limit access to these trusted devices the user has to do the following:

- Make a list of trusted devices;
- Allow access only from the list

To add a device to the list of trusted devices, first authorize in the system from this device (browser). Then, click **Add to Trusted Devices** in the **User Management** section of your profile (Fig.17).

Your list of trusted devices is shown in the **Trusted Devices** section (Fig. 17). To manage the list, click **Edit** or the **Trusted Devices** button in the top menu of your user page (Fig. 17).

	Back Edit	Trusted Devices		Flores P.
Ν	/ly Profile			
		Flores Paul Head of Sales Department P Bithday: June 29 Local ELMA account (since June 04, 2015)		Actions Change Password Minterface Language
	🖏 Task 🗐 Message	Office Phone #301 Mobile Phone +33 654 8765	E-Mail <u>flores@qmail.com</u> Skype t g <u>flores.p</u>	User Management Co Allow Access from Trusted Devices Only
<	Event	Performance	<u>107.5%</u> 🔊	Add to Trusted Devices
		KPI Weight Coefficient: 100%	Plan Fact Performance: 107.5%	
Γ	 Trusted Devices 	(edit)		ELMA Agent (Windows)
ļ	Name Chrome	Registration Date 11/11/2015 10:37 AM	Last Used 11/11/2015 10:37 AM	C ELMA Agent (Mac OS X)

Fig. 17. User Profile. Trusted Devices management

H ack	Baldwin E.			
Trusted Devices: Baldwin Ed				
Now access is allowed from an	Now access is allowed from any devices Allow access from trusted devices only			
Name	Registration Date	Last Used		
Chrome (logged in)	11/16/2015 11:26 AM	11/16/2015 11:29 AM	×	
Mozilla Firefox	11/16/2015 11:28 AM	11/16/2015 11:28 AM	×	
Internet Explorer	11/16/2015 11:29 AM	11/16/2015 11:29 AM	×	

Fig.18. Trusted Devices section of the user's profile

To make access available only from the listed devices, activate the **Allow Access from Trusted Devices Only** option in the **User** section (Fig. 18).

After that, you can only sign in from the devices listed as trusted. If you try to access the system from another device, you will receive a notification about wrong login or password.

Chapter 4. Organizing a Shared Workspace

The main goal of a shared workspace is to give each user access to different information from a single point of entry. Coming from different sources, this information is combined, structured and displayed in the way most efficient for employees to fulfill their job duties. It provides a basis for communication and information processing, saving time for search and data integration.

ELMA provides a shared workspace and offers a wide range of functions and capabilities for usage and customization.

If the **ELMA Web Application** is set correctly, the users receive access to all the needed information according to their duties. Within the **Web Application**, users can assign and complete tasks, send messages and take part in conversations, add their work schedule to the calendar, start business processes and participate in them, work with electronic documents and do many other things. For executives, the **ELMA Web Application** provides tools to monitor business processes and control employee compliance. Moreover, with the **ELMA KPI** application you can also monitor the employee performance.

Flexible access permissions to different system sections, documents or objects allow the employees of all departments to work in a shared workspace, providing access according to their work functions and duties.

In this chapter, you will learn how to organize fast information exchange within the **ELMA Web Application**. The following chapters describe other infomedia tools available in **ELMA**.

Messages

The **Messages** section is an important feature of the **ELMA Web Application** (**Ошибка! Источник ссылки не найден.**Fig.19). It displays all the notifications on system events and changes as well as messages from other users (e.g., created or edited tasks, documents, related comments, etc.).

When you create or edit documents, tasks, events, relationships, projects and other system elements, **ELMA** automatically sends system messages to the users who are involved.



Fig.19. Messages section

To send a message, click **Send Message**. By default, this button is located in the **Messages** section and on the main page. When customizing the interface, you can place it in any other section of **ELMA**.

When you create a message, choose the information channel and/or users who you want to address. You can attach a file from your computer or a document created in **ELMA**. Once a message is sent, you cannot delete or edit it, all the information is now recorded in the system.

ELMA shows unread messages highlighted bright. Messages marked as read appear in a pale color. If you click on the unread message, it will automatically change its color and the system will mark it as read.

The **Messages** section shows the message itself and the related comments. You can leave a comment or ask a question in a special field.

The most recent messages are displayed at the top of the list.

By default, this section displays the last 10 messages and 10 related comments. To view more messages click **Next** under the last message or scroll down the page. Click on the subject of the message to open its page.

The **Messages** section features **Quick Search** of messages by theme and by content, as well as by author and creation date. You can also set message importance to the messages received through info channels, manage notifications in a channel and set exceptions for event notifications. This way, each user can only receive the information that is important to them.

Public Channels

In a shared information space, it is important to facilitate group discussions and yet guarantee confidentiality of some information categories.

For such group discussions, the **Messages** section provides public information channels.

Public channels are created by the system administrator who also sets access permission for a user or a group of users. To create a channel and set permissions go to **Administration** \rightarrow **Basic Applications** \rightarrow **Public Channels** (Fig.20).

Nov 11 Wednesday	← Васк	Create			Administ	rator
Administration	Commo	on Public C	hannels			
Main Page				Qua	antity: 15 🗸 Items found: 3	Pages: 1 🧐
🍃 Users	Name			Subscribers		Author
System	Branch office	No. 1 (Open Co	ommented)	 ➡ Full Access ➡ Edit ➡ Read / Comment 		Administrator
Common Calendars Tasks	Sales (Open Informatio	Commented) on channel for sal	es department members	 Full Access Edit Read / Comment 		Administrator
Public Channels Reports	Company ner	ws (Open Comr	nented)	 Full Access Edit Read / Comment 		Administrator
📆 Portal Settings					Page generated for 9241 ms ELMA v. 3.8	3.0.23242 R.35a24d13524e50
📄 Document Management						
🚱 Business Processes						
acrm+						
Projects+						
С КРІ						
📟 Calendar						

Fig.20. Administration \rightarrow *Basic* Application \rightarrow *Public* Channels

There are three sections available:

- Public Channels Users can talk and discuss different subjects (Fig.21);
- **Projects** Intended for communication within a certain project. When you activate the **ELMA Projects+** application, this feature becomes available to those users who have access to the application. When creating a project, you can also create an information channel for it, giving access only to project members;
- **Archive** List of those information channels that were sent to archive.



Fig.21. Public Channels section. Common Public Channels.

It is most effective to create several public channels with different objectives and access permissions.

A common public channel is open for comments and is accessible to all users. Its main function is to notify all system users about upcoming events, activities and changes within the company. Each user can participate in discussions, creating messages in the channel.

Separate public channels are meant for departments, branch offices or groups of employees who work on the same issue. They allow to limit discussions only to a certain group of users. Such channels are open for comments and messages from those users who have access. For example, you can create a channel for the Sales Department or a separate channel for executives only.

There are channels that do not allow comments; use them for fast notification of users. You can limit the number of users allowed to create notifications in such channels. For example, you can make messaging in the news channel available only to the employees in charge.

To create a public channel, go to **Administration** \rightarrow **Basic Applications** \rightarrow **Public Channels** (Fig.20), click the **Create** button located in the top menu, fill in the creation form (Fig.22) and save it.

Here Here Back Save	Administrator
Create Public Channel	
Name *	
Open Channel	• Yes • No Subscription to an open channel is avavilable for any organization employee. A closed channel is managed by the administrators.
Commented	• Yes ONo
Active	• Yes ONo
Archive	Ves No
Forbid to manage channel subscription	• Yes No
Importance	Regular
Description	

Fig.22. Public Channel creation form

To limit access, set the **Open Channel** option button to **No**. In this case, all subscriptions are managed by the administrator.

To forbid subscriptions and comments in the channel, set the corresponding option buttons to **No**. To close the channel, set the **Archive** option button to **Yes**.

The system administrator can change these settings for any existing public channel.

Once a channel is created, you have to manage its subscriptions. Go to the page that lists all the public channel (Fig. 20), and click on a channel's name to open its page. Then, set access permissions in the **Subscribers** tab (Fig.23).

Back Edit		Administrator
#Company news		
General Information Subscribers		
	Read / Comment	Edit Full Access
🗙 🐌 Author		
🗙 🝰 All Users		
🕂 Add 🛛 📕 Save		
		Page generated for 921 ms ELMA v. 3.8.0.23242 R.35a24d13524e50

Fig.23 Public channel's page. Subscribers tab.

Levels of access to public channels:

The **Read/Comment** level gives permissions to view channel messages and comment them.

The **Edit** level gives the same permissions as the **Read/Comment** level, and also allows to send messages to the channel.

Full Access provides full access to a public channel and allows to give access permissions to other users. To have a full access to a channel it is not enough to have the permissions of this level. You also need additional permissions to administrate public channels (in Administration \rightarrow Users \rightarrow Access Settings \rightarrow Global Access Settings \rightarrow Public Channels Administration).

A system administrator can create, archive or change access permissions for public channels at any time. The public channels and their flexible settings provide a convenient space for notifications and discussions of company's events.

Interfaces

If you are using **ELMA Web Application** as your company's shared workspace, we recommend you to customize its interfaces.

ELMA allows to change and customize user interfaces without programming, using an interface visual editor.

You can customize interfaces for each group of users by making the highly used functions easily accessible and taking the unused sections out of the menu. For example, it would be useful for a sales department to have contract templates and links to frequently used processes right on their main page; while records management employees would want links to document registry and mail processing.

For interface settings, go to **Administration** \rightarrow **Portal Settings** \rightarrow **Interfaces** (Fig.24). Here you can find a list of all the system interfaces. In the beginning, there is only the **Default Interface** and **Lite Interface**.

O Nov 11 Wednesday	Back Add Interface	Administrator
Administration	Interfaces List	
Main Page		Quantity: 15 🗸 Items found: 2 Pages: 1 🚱
	Name	
a System	Default Interface	
Basic Applications	Lite	
		Page generated for 2982 ms ELMA v. 3.8.0.23242 R.35a24d13524e50
E Portal Settings		
Interfaces		
Pages	<	
Portlets	2	
Action Register		
📄 Document Management		
🚱 Business Processes		
CRM+		

Fig.24. Interfaces

For more details on interface settings, see **ELMA Help** and **ELMA BPM Platform quick**start manual.

E-Mail Interface

For people who use email services in their work, we created the **ELMA Rich e-mail interface** (**ELMA.RE**). **ELMA.RE** sends task notifications directly to your e-mail account and allows you to make a decision right in your mailing agent.

All the incoming tasks are placed in your Inbox (the **Incoming Mail** folder). You can create a separate folder and filter your incoming tasks to see them separately from the rest of your e-mails.

Instead of sending a simple notification, **ELMA.RE** also provides all the necessary information to make a decision. Say, you are assigned with a task to consider a document. **ELMA.RE** sends you this document along with other relevant information, providing all the buttons necessary to complete the task.

ELMA.RE is available to any user. To set the **Rich** task notification, go to your profile, open it for editing, go to **Notification Settings** (Fig.25) and select this notification type for your incoming tasks.

Edit the Administrator ELMA user					
Profile Contacts Personal Inform	ation Notification Settings	Tasks			
E-mail					
Incoming Tasks	Rich		\sim		
Do not notify					
Nouncations	Rich				
	Default				

Fig.25. Editing user profile. Notification Settings tab

The e-mail message format is changed to HTML, which features a better layout and displays links as buttons that allow you to perform certain actions.

For the Rich notification function to work, you must be authorized in the system and connected to it. If you are not authorized, you will be directed to the sign in page.

You can find an example of a Rich notification in Fig.26.

Gmail -	←	1 of 4 < > 📰 👻
сомрозе Inbox (1)	[ELMA] (New Task) Develop new marketing concept	ELMA <eima@elewise.com></eima@elewise.com>
Starred Sent Mail Drafts More √	LLMA <eima@elewise.com></eima@elewise.com>	Show details
<mark>्</mark> ∎Tom र Q	Develop new marketing concept	
	Baldwin Ed assigned a task to you Open in O COC	
	Author Baldwin Ed	
	Supervisor Baldwin Ed	
	Priority Regular	
No recent chats	Start Date 6/16/2015	
Start a new one	End Date 10/23/2015	
	Completed	
÷ Φ		

Fig.26. Rich notification on an incoming task

ELMA Agent

ELMA Agent is a software program designed to receive notifications about system events and facilitate work with documentation. With **ELMA Agent**, users receive system notifications right on time, being able to react quickly to anything that is going on.

If you have an **ELMA server** installed and working, you can install **ELMA Agent** on each user PC. No additional registration required.

With **ELMA Agent**, you can receive the following information (without actually referring to the system):

• Notifications on **ELMA** working activities: tasks being assigned and completed, meetings with customers arranged, documentation created;

- Notifications from the public channels;
- Information about electronic documents being edited and saved on the server, or about new document versions created;

• Fast access to the documents that you have worked with before. The **Documents** tab displays all the documents that are now open or have been recently opened in **ELMA**. You can easily edit and save documents or create new document versions right on the server.

0	ELMA Agent	- 🗆 🗙
	Search?	\$ B
	Incoming contract with Office Supplies Inc. No.007 of 5/15/2015	Current Version: 1
Messages	Folder: Incoming Contracts	Copen 🗸 🗸
P	Edited By-Carter A. Being edited: 0 min(s).	Open in Browser
Active	Versions V	
Documents	Incoming mail No.00001 from REWE Markt	Current Version: 2
Doddinionio	Folder: Incoming Mail Modified: 10/17/2015 11:21 AM Size: 11.29Kb	🎦 Open 🖌
	Edited By: Brooks T. Being edited: 1 min(s).	Open in Browser
	Document edited: 10/17/2015 11:21 AM	Save Undo changes
	Versions V	
Server 3.8.0.22533		
Client 3.8.0.33562		

Fig.27. ELMA Agent. Messages section

ELMA Agent works with Windows, Mac OS and Linux. For installation, setup and basic work description see **ELMA BPM Platform manual** and **ELMA Help**.

Chapter 5. Employee Schedule Compliance

With **ELMA Web Application**, you can easily assign tasks to your employees and monitor task completion to increase the efficiency and quality of work.

User tasks

By default, any **ELMA Web Application** user can create, approve, execute and control user tasks.

To create a task, click **Task** in the top menu of the main page (Fig.28), or in the **Tasks** section of the main menu. To open the main menu move your mouse pointer over the **ELMA** logo in the top-left corner of the main page and wait until the blue button appears. This button opens the main menu.

You can also create tasks directly from customers' pages and other objects of the web portal. When customizing the interface, you can place the task buttons on other portal pages too.



Fig.28. Task creation button

User tasks are divided into simple and periodical or repeated tasks. When creating a periodical task, you have to set its frequency. Each time **ELMA** will automatically create this task from a template and assign it to all the participants, just as specified.

All the information about tasks created, completed or monitored by a user is available in the **Tasks** section (Fig.29). This section not only shows user tasks (that is, tasks created by other employees) but also displays tasks related to business processes, documentation and projects.

Nov 11 Wednesday	Keine Keine Back Task Time Report	Baldwin E.
Tasks	Incoming Select Filter	ര
Task List	Search	From v 💄 Q Search
Outgoing Search	Now viewing My Department Status: Active Overdue All Advanced Search	
😨 Periodic Tasks		Quantity: 15 🗸 Items found: 10 Pages: 1 🧐 🔅
L Time Report	Type Task Instance Process	Date created V Author End Date Priority
uy Department 🕺	Develop new marketing concept Task (end date: 11/17/2015)	11/10/2015 5:52 Brooks T. 11/17/2015 PM
	Edit the sales forecast according to market reaction Project Task Bring SMART LK to Market	11/10/2015 9:40 Shaw S. 10/30/2015 • AM
	Approve the funding request Travel expenses Funding Request	11/9/2015 3:43 Dunn T. 11/11/2015 •
	Solution of the international markets	11/8/2015 3:37 Baldwin E. 11/18/2015 PM
	Choose hosting provider Goal : Update company web site	11/8/2015 11:54 Brooks T. 11/18/2015 •
	Design web site mockup Goal : Update company web site	11/8/2015 11:53 Brooks T. 11/18/2015 •
	Adjust the advertising campaign according to the forecast changes Task (end date: 11/21/2015)	11/7/2015 5:57 Brooks T. 11/21/2015 PM

Fig.29. Tasks section

The **Tasks** section allows you to:

- View different groups of tasks:
 - Incoming tasks Tasks assigned to you;
 - **Outgoing tasks** Tasks assigned by you;
 - Tasks under control Tasks under your control;
 - Periodic tasks;
 - **Tasks within department** All the current and outdated tasks assigned to employees of a department (this section is only available to executives);
 - **Tasks by department** All the current, outdated and completed tasks, assigned by employees of a department (this section is only available to executives);
 - **Task archive** List of completed and controlled tasks (this section is only available to executives);
- Create and complete tasks;
- Submit a time report about completed work;
- Search tasks.

A user can have the following roles within a task:

- **Author** Person who creates the task;
- **Executor** User responsible for the task's execution. This person is assigned by the task author, but can be changed during task execution.
- **Co-executor** User who works on the task together with the executor but is not responsible for the task. The co-executor receives the same task notifications as the executor.

- **Observer** User who receives notifications about any task activities.
- **Approver** User who approves the task.
- **Supervisor** User who controls the execution and completion of the task.

Regardless of their role, all these users can view the task's page. The superiors of the author, executor and co-executor (according to the organization structure) also have permissions to view the task's page.

The system administrator can allow certain user groups to view pages of any tasks within the company.

The task can be edited by the author or their superior (according to the organization structure).

When you create a user task (Fig. 30), specify the task name, the executor and the due date. You can also define a category and priority; add a description, a document or a computer file. There are additional options available in the top menu of the task creation page. For example, you can assign monitoring and control (**Control** button) to a certain employee (usually, a superior). By default, the tasks author is selected as the supervisor. You can add an approver by clicking **Approver**.

There is always one person responsible for the task, the executor. However, you can add co-executors (**Co-executors** button). They receive information about the task and participate in working activities.

You can also specify the time limit (**Time Report Limit** button). In this case, the time report on this task will be limited with this planned time.

All the participants and any actions concerning the task are displayed on the task page.
Save Activity (KPI)	roject Control Approver Co-Executors Time Report Limit	Collins E.
Create Task		
Subject *		
Executor *		→ ×
Start Date *	11/11/2015 💽 🗌 Specify time	
End Date *	11/11/2015 💽 🖸 Specify time	
Priority	Regular	
Category	~ Q +	
Description		
	Attached Files Attached	I Documents
	Load Files (not greater than 1000 MB) You can load a file by dragging it to this area	v 4 +

Fig.30. Task creation form

You can see the task's page in **Tasks** section (Fig.29). Use the **Actions** button in the top menu to create subtasks, add comments, ask question, reassign the task, monitor its execution, send for approval and add observers. In addition, the task author and their superior can edit the task and change its due date.



Fig.31 Task display form

The **Completed** button states the fact that the work is complete. With the **Cannot Execute** button you can stop the task execution; the supervisor will be notified about it. They can either reopen the task or cancel it.

Once you complete a task, click the **Completed** button. In the provided window, you can add a comment about the task, attach a file from the local computer or a document created in the system, and confirm the task completion (Fig. 32).

Completed	Cannot Execute	8	Collins E.	\odot
		Completed >	<	
> Time	e Report			
Comment				
Presentati	on prepared		icer	?
			Branch Office No. 2	2
			cer	?
Load F You can b	iles (not greater than 1000 MB) load a file by dragging it to this area	~ Q +		
		Notify co-executors Completed Cancel	ELMA v. 3.8.0.23242 R.	.35a24d13524e50

Fig.32. Task completion

Once a task is complete, its status changes to *Completed*. If control of task completion is assigned, the task will be directed to the supervisor.

Task Control

When the executor completes a task, they click **Completed** on the task page, leave a comment if necessary and attach documents or files. Then the task goes to the user specified as the task supervisor (by default it is the task author). They accept the work and mark the task as completed. If necessary, they can send the task back into work, leaving a comment or making changes to the task. Once the control is over, the task is considered done and is sent to the archive.

To manage settings and to assign the supervisor, use the **Control** active button (Fig.33), when creating the task. By default, the task author is also the task supervisor.

Save Activity (KPI)	Project Control Approver Co-Executors Tir	Miller A.						
Create Task								
Subject *	Subject * Prepare a performance report							
Executor *	 Ž 	\rightarrow \sim						
Start Date *	11/11/2015 🗑 🖸 Specify time							
End Date *	11/11/2015 🗑 Specify time							
Completion Check	• Yes No Miller Adam (Chief Commercial Officer)	Completion Check						
Priority	Regular 🗸	Notify when Completed Completion Check						
Category	~ Q +	Task Monitoring						
Description								
	Attached Files	Attached Documents						
		ч ч т						

Fig.33. Task creation page. Control button and Control field

There are three types of task control:

- **Notify when Completed** Supervisor receives a notification when the task is complete. They not only receive information but can also approve or reject the result of work.
- **Completion Check** Supervisor receives a notification when the task is completed. Such tasks are displayed in the supervisor's **Completion Check** section (Fig.34). When the executor finishes work on the task (clicks **Completed**), **ELMA** assigns the supervisor with a task to check the work results. At this point, the supervisor can send the task back into work.

O Nov 12 Thursday	Back Task Time Report Completed	Miller A.
Tasks	Completion Check Select Filter	ග
Task List	ßearch	Q Search
Incoming Outgoing	Now viewing Active All	
Completion Check	Authors	V L Executors V
Search	Adversed Second	
💈 Periodic Tasks	Advanced Search	
🕒 Time Report		Quantity: 15 🗸 Items found: 3 Pages: 1 🧐 🏠
u My Department	< DV Type Task Instance	Process Date created v Executor End Date Priority Date completed
	Update customer information on START LCC Completion Check (Completed On 11/12/2015 5:16 AM)	11/12/2015 5:12 AM Collins E. 11/12/2015 ① AM
	Prepare a lead report Completion Check (Completed On 11/12/2015 5:14 AM)	11/12/2015 5:07 AM Taylor E. 11/12/2015 • 11/12/2015 • AM
	Gather information on START LCC Completion Check (Completed On 11/11/2015 2:02 PM)	11/11/2015 1:14 PM Collins E. 11/12/2015 (*) 11/11/2015 2:02 PM

Fig.34. Completion Check subsection

 Task Monitoring - Supervisor receives a notification when the task is complete. Such tasks are displayed in the supervisor's Task Monitoring section (Fig.35). This type of control allows to monitor the entire work process (the task becomes available in the supervisor's Task Monitoring section right after it is created). Once the task is completed, it appears in the supervisor's Completion check section. At this moment, the supervisor can send the task back into work.

O Nov 12 Thursday	Back Task Time Report	Miller A.
Tasks	Task Monitoring Select Filter	බ
Task List	Search	Q Search
Incoming Outgoing Completion Check	Authors	v 2 Executors v 2
Task Monitoring Search	Advanced Search	Quantity: 15 🗸 Items found: 1 Pages: 1 🚱 🏠
💈 Periodic Tasks	Type Task Instance	Process Date created v Executor End Date Priority Date completed
Time Report My Department	Make a risk assessment report on START project Task (end date: 11/12/2015)	11/12/2015 5:25 Flores P. 11/12/2015 • AM
my Department		Page generated for 2343 ms ELMA v. 3.8.0.23242 R.35a24d13524e50

Fig.35.Task Monitoring subsection

To mark the task as completed, click **Completed** in the task's top menu (Fig.36). To send the task back into work, click **Reopen**.

Nov 12 Thursday	Completed Reopen Actions	Miller A.
Tasks	Make a risk assessment report on START project	
Task List	About Task	
Incoming Outgoing Completion Check	End Date from 11/12/2015 💽 till Today (11/12/2015) 🖸	Author Miller A. Chief Commercial Officer
Periodic Tasks	Task created (Miller A. 11/12/2015 5:25:43 AM) Task completed (Flores P. 11/12/2015 5:30:32 AM)	Executor Flores P. Head of Sales Department
🎂 My Department		Completion Check Image: Miller A. Image: Chief Commercial Officer
		Date created 11/12/2015 5:25 AM Status Completed
		Page generated for 3328 ms ELMA v. 3.8.0.23242 R.35a24d13524e50

Fig.36 Task control

The task author or supervisor can manage the task control settings. They can change the supervisor, control type or cancel it. To change the type of control go to the top menu of the task page and click **Actions** \rightarrow **Change Control Type**.

My Department

My Department is another tool for schedule compliance monitoring; you can find it in the **Tasks** section (Fig.37).

My Department is available only to Heads of Departments. It displays information about all the tasks of their employees, making it easy to assess the workload and see users with overdue tasks.



Fig. 37. My Department section. Department's active tasks

The tasks are grouped according to users who they are assigned to; open a user's panel to see their task list.

The **Tasks from Department** filter in the **My Department**'s section shows all the tasks assigned by your employees. They are divided into active and completed tasks; the overdue tasks are marked separately.

Reports

For better schedule compliance monitoring, **ELMA** features several reports that allow for quick analysis of the employees' work. You can make and view reports in the **Reports** section.

To work with the **Reports** section or with a certain report, you need corresponding access permissions. By default, this section (as well as any other system report) is only available to the system administrator. To set access permission (only administrator can do it), go to **Administration** \rightarrow **Basic Applications** \rightarrow **Reports** \rightarrow **Access permissions for the "Reports" module**.

By default, the **Reports** section allows you to make the following schedule compliance reports:

- Aggregate report on schedule compliance;
- Report on schedule compliance.

There is also the **Report on business activity**, which displays all the tasks, communication, calendar events, deals and leads over a certain time for selected **ELMA** users.

Aggregate report on schedule compliance

The aggregate report on schedule compliance displays average statistics on user tasks over a certain period of time:

- Total number of tasks;
- Number of complete tasks;
- Number of active tasks;
- Number of tasks completed on time;
- Number of tasks overdue;
- Percentage of tasks completed on time;
- Number of tasks overdue.

The aggregate report does not include tasks with the following statuses: Pending Pre-Approval, Pre-Approval Rejected, Closed by Author, Cannot Execute and Checked

To generate this report, go to **Reports** section, and then click on the **Aggregated report on schedule compliance**. On the page that appears, fill in all the required fields and click the **Show Report** button in the top menu of the current page (Fig.38).

Back Show R	eport	Administrator						
Aggregate repo	ort on schedule compliance	(3.1)						
✓ Parameters								
Period *	Custom	✓						
Job Positions		✓ ♣						
🗹 Tasks	Workflow tasks							
💽 Project tasks	Ocument tasks							
Show tasks of lock The tasks assigne Consider Business In the subreport the	 Show tasks of locked users The tasks assigned to the locked users will be included to the report Consider Business Calendar In the subreport the number of overdue days will be calculated according to Businesss Calendar 							
End Date								
from 11/12/20	015 🔳							
to 11/12/20	015							

Fig. 38. Setting parameters to generate an aggregate report

In Fig.39 you can see a fragment of Aggregate report on schedule compliance.

Back Show R	port Export	Print	Document						Administ	2 💭 🕑
Aggregate repo	Aggregate report on schedule compliance (3.1)									
> Parameters	> Parameters									
Aggregate report on schedule compliance End date: from 11/12/2015 to 11/12/2015 Quantity: 15 • Items found: 25 Pages: 1 2										
								quantity		10. 25 1 ugos. 1 2
Employee				Total for period	Completed	Executing	Completed on time	Overdue	Completed on time, %	Active overdue tasks
Employee Administrator				Total for period	Completed 0	Executing 0	Completed on time	Overdue 0	Completed on time, %	Active overdue tasks
Employee Administrator Bailey F. (Chief of IT-De	artment, Head of Worksh	10p No. 1)		Total for period	Completed 0 0	Executing 0 0	Completed on time 0 0	Overdue 0 0	Completed on time, % 0.00 % 0.00 %	Active overdue tasks 0 0 0
Employee Administrator Bailey F. (Chief of IT-De Baldwin E. (Chief Marke	artment, Head of Worksh ng Officer, Head of Marke	nop No. 1) eting Departmer	nt)	Total for period 0 0 0 0	Completed 0 0 0	Executing 0 0	Completed on time 0 0 0	Overdue 0 0 0	Completed on time, % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 %	Active overdue tasks 0 0 2
Employee Administrator Bailey F. (Chief of IT-De Baldwin E. (Chief Marke Brooks T. (Chief Executi	artment, Head of Worksh ng Officer, Head of Mark re Officer)	iop No. 1) eting Departmer	nt)	Total for period 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Completed 0 0 0 0	Executing 0 0 0 0	Completed on time 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Overdue 0 0 0 0	Completed on time, % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 %	Active overdue tasks 0 0 2 1
Employee Administrator Bailey F. (Chief of IT-De Baldwin E. (Chief Marke Brooks T. (Chief Executi Campbell M. (Office Mar	artment, Head of Worksh ng Officer, Head of Mark re Officer) ager)	iop No. 1) eting Departmer	nt)	O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Completed 0 0 0 0 0 0	Executing 0 0 0 0 0 0	Completed on time 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Overdue 0 0 0 0 0 0	Completed on time, % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 %	Active overdue tasks 0 0 2 1 0
Administrator Bailey F. (Chief of IT-De Baldwin E. (Chief Marke Brooks T. (Chief Executi Campbell M. (Office Mar Carter A. (Secretary)	artment, Head of Worksh ng Officer, Head of Mark re Officer) ager)	iop No. 1) eting Departmer	nt)	O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Completed 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Executing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Completed on time 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Overdue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Completed on time, % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 %	Active overdue tasks 0 0 2 1 0 1 0 1
Administrator Bailey F. (Chief of IT-De Baldwin E. (Chief of IT-De Baldwin E. (Chief Marke Brooks T. (Chief Executi Campbell M. (Office Mar Carter A. (Secretary) Collins E. (Deputy CCO	artment, Head of Worksh ng Officer, Head of Marke re Officer) ager) Head of Branch Office Ne	op No. 1) eting Departmer o. 2)	nt)	O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5	Completed 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2	Executing 0 0 0 0 0 0 3	Completed on time 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Overdue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Completed on time, % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 %	Active overdue tasks 0 0 2 1 0 1 0 1 0
Employee Administrator Bailey F. (Chief of IT-De Baldwin E. (Chief Marke Brooks T. (Chief Executi Campbell M. (Office Mar Carter A. (Secretary) Collins E. (Deputy CCO Dunn T. (Member of Mar	artment, Head of Worksh ng Officer, Head of Marke re Officer) ager) Head of Branch Office Ne eting Department)	op No. 1) eting Departmer o. 2)	nt)	O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Completed 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0	Executing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0	Completed on time 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Overdue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Completed on time, % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 40.00 %	Active overdue tasks 0 0 2 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fig. 39. Example of Aggregate report on schedule compliance

If you click on a number in blue, the report will display a list of tasks assigned to this column according to the user in the **User** column.

Report on Schedule Compliance

The report on schedule compliance shows detailed information about user tasks over certain period of time, displaying a list of general tasks, tasks completed on time, tasks overdue, etc. The table columns vary according to the selected layout. The report on schedule compliance shows only the tasks with planned due dates (**End date** on the tasks page) that fit in the specified timeline.

To generate a report on schedule compliance, go to **Reports** and click on the **Report on schedule compliance link**. Fill in all the required parameters in the fields provided and click **Show Report** in the top menu of the page (Fig.40).

	Back Show Report	Administrator
	Report on schedule com	pliance (3.1)
	✓ Parameters	
	Period *	Custom 🗸
	Employees	\checkmark \checkmark \checkmark \checkmark \checkmark
	Group by *	employees v
	Task Status *	All
*	Tasks	Workflow tasks
	Project tasks	Document tasks
	Show active overdue tasks All overdue or incomplete by the e	mployee tasks will be included in the report
	Show tasks of the locked users The tasks assigned to the locked u	isers will be included in the report
	End Date	
	from 11/12/2015 🖼	
	to 11/12/2015	

Fig. 40. Setting parameters for a Report on schedule compliance

Fig. 41 shows a **Report on schedule compliance**

	← Back	Show Report Export F	Print	Document			Administrator					
	Report on schedule compliance (3.1)											
	> Parameters											
	Report on schedule compliance End date: from 11/16/2015 to 11/16/2015 Quantity: 15 V Items found: 6 Pages: 1											
	Туре	Subject			Start Date	End Date	Completion Date					
	2	Administrator Active tasks: 3 Overdue tasks: 0										
c	V	Create 5 user accounts for new employ	yees		11/16/2015 11/16/2015 11/16/2015							
	V	Server scheduled maintenance			11/16/2015	11/16/2015	11/16/2015					
	V	Server scheduled maintenance			11/16/2015	11/16/2015	11/16/2015					
		Miller A. (Chief Commercial Officer) Active tasks: 2 Overdue tasks: 0										
	~	Adjust the prices according to the mark	et change	S	11/12/2015	11/16/2015	-					
	~	Adjust the prices according to the mark	et change	s	11/11/2015	11/11/2015 -						
	8	Walker S. (Head of Project Office) Active tasks: 1 Overdue tasks: 0										
		Insurance payments.docx of 6/19/2015	6:16 PM		11/9/2015	11/16/2015						

Fig. 41 Example of a Report on schedule compliance

Use the top menu buttons of the report page to export the report into a different format: PDF, Excel 2003 and 2007, Word 2007, RTF or text. Print the entire report or a part of it or save it in **ELMA** as a web-document.

With data from schedule compliance reports, you can analyze how employees work.

Chapter 6. Activity Planning

To help employees plan their work activities, **ELMA** features the **Calendar**. Each employee has their own calendar, where they can schedule all the events, communication and due dates of their current tasks. It is also possible to create and view common calendars, but this option is available only to users with special access permissions.

In **ELMA**, an **Event** is a note about a certain activity; it can be created by any user. Specify the event's theme, date and place, as well as a list of participants and other information. If you want to record an event that has already happened, it is possible to enter a past date when creating the event.

You can export the **ELMA** calendar into:

- an iCalendar file (*.ics, iCal), which you can then open in any electronic organizer;
- an Internet calendar. In this case you to view the calendar of the current user, of a third user or a shared calendar in another software program that supports internet calendars (e.g., Microsoft Outlook and Google calendars).

In external software, ELMA Calendars are only accessible for viewing.

You can import one or several events from external online calendars into the **ELMA Calendar**; they will be available for viewing only.

For the **Calendar** export and import, see **ELMA Help**.

You can also use business processes to plan the company's activity.

User Calendar

The user **Calendar** shows different activities of the current user:

- regular and periodic events;
- communication with customers (e.g., a phone call, a meeting, a reminder to send an e-mail);
- the calendar also shows the tasks for which the user has set due dates.

Use the **Calendar** to schedule your work. Once it is open, you can see a full picture of your working activities throughout a certain period (a day, a week or a month). For full information, click on the activity in the calendar to open its page.

In the **Calendar** section of the **ELMA** left menu you can see all the calendars accessible to you.

By default, a user's personal calendar can be viewed by all their superiors, according to the organization structure. A user can give permission to view or edit their calendar (or even provide full access) to any other user.

With **Calendar**, you can:

- schedule events, tasks, phone calls, e-mail messages, meetings;
- view activities from any period (a day, a business week, a calendar week, a month);
- view activities in different layouts: as a table or a list;
- review and revise common calendars (if you have access permissions);
- view calendars of other users (if you have access permissions);
- set access to your own calendar for other users;
- print out activities from the calendar.



Fig. 42 User's Calendar page

To create a regular event or a communication activity, use the **Add** button (Fig. 43) in the top menu of the calendar page; or you can left-click on the desired date and time in your calendar's event field.

	l ov 16 Monday	Add	7 Diagonal Andrew Today	Calendar	List	Print C	ialendars	port	Baldwin E. 🧶 💭 💭 💭
Calendar		Create Event	ember 20, 2015	5 →					
November 2015	5 🛞	Create Call	nber 16, Monday						
SU MO TU WE TH	FR SA	Create Mail			Select	>	(· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
1 2 3 4 5	6 7	Create Meeting			Sciece	/	`		
8 9 10 11 12		11 ⁰⁰			 Create Event Create Task 				
15 16 17 18 19 22 23 24 25 26	20 21 27 28	12 00			🚽 Create Call				
29 30 1 2 3	4 5	1 00 PM			👂 Create Meeting				
Last 5		2 00 PM				Cancel			Monthly project committee
Bookmarks		3 ⁰⁰ PM							=
		4 ⁰⁰ _{PM}							

(Fig. 43) Add button and dialogue box for creating a new calendar event

Add the **Calendar** portlet to your main page to make event tracking even easier (Fig. 44). The **Calendar** portlet displays activities and scheduled tasks in chronological order starting from the current day and for a week ahead, also showing the activities outdated at the given moment. If you click on the portlet's name, you will go straight to the **Calendar** section.



Fig. 44 Calendar portlet

By default, the user tasks are not displayed in the calendar. For the tasks to be displayed, you need to schedule them. To do so, go to the calendar page, open the planning dashboard (Fig. 45) and drag'n'drop the unplanned tasks into the activity field to a certain time. To open the planning dashboard, click the \bigotimes button in the top left part of the dashboard. To close it, click the \bigotimes button in the top left part of the dashboard.

O Nov 12 Thursday	Add V	Z Modes Today	Calendar	List	Print	Calendars	Export		Miller A.
Calendar	← 9-	November 13, 20	15 🔶						Unplanned
ⓒ November 2015 →									Enter plan value Create sales presentations
SU MO TU WE TH FR SA 25 26 27 28 29 30 31	9 ⁰⁰ _{AM}								Adjust the prices according to the market changes
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	10 _{AM}								Approve the business proposal
15 16 17 18 19 20 21	12 ⁰⁰			- 10	20 DH 4:00 DH			12:00 PM - 2:00 PM ×	Approve Task - Redesign the product presentations
22 23 24 23 26 27 28 29 30 1 2 3 4 5	< 1 ⁰⁰ _{PM} -			12: 21:00 Sales	30 PM - 1:00 PM 0 PM - 2:30 PM department weekly	×	0 PM - 2:40 PM - ×	to the market changes	O Create the business proposal
-Last 5	2 00 PM			meetin	g =	Appoint	t a date of webinar =	-	1
	3 ⁰⁰ _{PM}								Adjust the prices according
	4 ⁰⁰ -					Create The dra	0 PM - 6:00 PM × sales presentations ft of the presentations	million	Create sales presentations
	5 ⁰⁰ _{PM} -					is in the check it	attachment. Please and let me know if you		@ Reach revenue of EUR 50 million
	6 pm								1
	/ pM								-

Fig. 45. Expanded task planning dashboard

You can also schedule your tasks in either subsection of the **Task List** section or in the **Tasks** portlet. To do so, click the — icon (Fig. 46), that you can see in the task's **End Date** field. A window displaying the **Calendar** page will appear. In this page, click on the required time. Then confirm the date planned by clicking **Add** in the provided window.

In	coming Select Filter						ര
	Search		From		~] 2 [Q :	Search
A	ow viewing My Departmen dvanced Search	t Status: Active C	Overdue All	Quantity: 15 🗸	Items found: 5	Pages: 1	9
Тур	e Task	Instance	Process	Date created 🗸	Author	End Date	Priority
	Approve an outgoing mail Outgoing mail No. to Globotoc The The outgoing mail to Glob process	e otoce of 6/22/2015 7:43 PM ir	nstance in the "Create Outgoing Mail"	11/12/2015 7:44 PM	Carter A.	11/14/2015	•
ā	Make a decision about the inco Incoming mail No.00001 from The processing of the incoming Mail" process	oming mail Ormit Ltd g mail from Ormit Ltd of 6/22/2	2015 instance in the "Process Incoming	11/12/2015 3:31 9 PM	Carter A.	11/14/2015	•

Fig. 46. Task planning button

Common Calendars

In a **Common Calendar**, activities are open for viewing and editing to all the system users who have corresponding access permissions.

You can use common calendars to plan your company's general resources, for example, to book time in a meeting room so that meetings do not overlap. Since the calendar shows all the planned events, it is always clear at what time the meeting room is available.

The calendars and their access permissions are set up by the administrator in **Administration** \rightarrow **Basic Applications** \rightarrow **Common Calendars** (Fig. 47). The number of common calendars is not limited.

Nov 13 Friday	Back Create	Administr	ator					
Administration	Configure com	mon calendars						
Main Page		Quantity: 15 🗸 Items found: 1	Pages: 1 🧐					
🍃 Users	Name	Description	Author					
👗 System	Meeting room		Administrator					
Basic Applications		Page generated for 2520 ms ELMA v. 3.8.0).23374 R.9ab2f687d2bd58					
Common Calendars								
Tasks								
Public Channels								
Reports	5							

Fig. 47 Administration \rightarrow Basic Applications \rightarrow Common Calendars

To create a common calendar, click **Create** in the top menu of the section. A dialogue box will appear (Fig. 48), fill in all the required fields and click **Create** for confirmation.

Create Common Calendar								
Name *	Meeting room							
Description	Events held in the meeting room							
	Create	ancel						

Fig. 48 Create Common Calendar dialogue box

Then configure the common calendar's settings. To go to the calendar's page (Fig. 49) nd manage its setting, click on its name in the list of common calendars. To set access permissions, go to the **Permissions** tab and **Add** users or groups to the list and assign their access permissions.

← Back	Ed	Edit Delete				Administrator						
Calendar - Meeting room												
General Infor	mation	Permissions	Extern	al Calendars 0								
				View Events	Edit Events	s Full Access						
🗙 🚨 Adn	ninistrator	ELMA			 Image: A set of the set of the							
🗙 🌮 Adn	🗙 🌮 Administrators											
+ Add	E Save											

Fig. 49. Common calendar page. Permissions tab

There are three levels of access to a common calendar:

- View events Gives access to view events in the calendar. Editing is not allowed.
- **Edit events** Gives access to add and change calendar events. When this checkbox is selected, the "View Events" checkbox (and respective access permissions) is selected automatically.
- **Full access** Gives full access including managing access permissions to the calendar. The "View events" and "Edit events" checkboxes are selected automatically.

You can add several calendars to the **External Calendars** tab; **ELMA Calendar** will automatically display their events.

To view the common calendars accessible to you, go to the **Calendar** section and click **Calendars** in the top menu of the page. You will see a list of common and private calendars accessible to you (at least at the **View Event** level). Now choose the calendar that you wish to view.

				Print Calendar	rs Export	Miller A.
			Select Calendar	×]	
		View Calendar:	My Calendar My Calendar	×		
	🥵 1:00 PM - 1:30 P		Common Calendars	ancel		
			User Calendars Collins Earl			
			Flores Paul Harris David			
			Murphy Evelyn Olson Caroline			
			Taylor Erica]	

Fig. 50. Select a Calendar to view

You can create an event from the calendar's page, from the **ELMA Web Application** main page or from the main menu. To create it from the main page or the main menu, click **Create Event**; the event page will appear. To create it from the calendar's top menu, click **Common Calendars** (Fig.51). Below the event dates you will see a list of accessible calendars, select the one that you need.



Fig. 51. Creating an event in the current Calendar

Once you have saved the event, it will appear in the selected common calendar and in the private calendar of each participant.

If your event overlaps in time and/or place with another event already created, you will see a window displaying information about it (Fig. 52).

	0			Ν	lov Fri	13 day	Save	Informed	Periodicity	Common Calendars					Brool	(s T.	\odot	
Calendar							Calenda	r - Event										
ⓒ November 2015					5	Э	Subject *	Subject * Negotiation			n with START LCC							
	МО 26	тU 27	WE 28	тн 29	FR 30		Place	Place										
1	2	3	4	5	б	7		Some overlaps are found 🛛 🗙 🚨									~	
8	9	10	11	12	13	14	Shaw Simon	aw Simon										
15	16	17	18	19	20	2	11/12 12:00 -	11/20 11:59 Pr	oject planning									
22	23	24	25	26	27	28	11/12 12:00 -	11/16 11:59 Cr	eate a project p	blan								
29	30	1	2	3	4	5	Meeting room											
	ast 5						11/13 1:00 -	11/13 2:00 Me	eeting									
														~			×	
і. Е. Е	Bookm	narks								Save	and continue	Cancel						
							End Date *		11/	13/2015 😨 15	:00 🗸							
							Calendars		v	Meeting room								

Fig. 52. Notification about overlaps found

To open that overlapping event in a new tab of your browser, click on its name.

If you click on **Save and continue**, the event that you created will be saved for the time specified. The **Calendar** will show that events are overlapping. To cancel and go back to the creation page, click on **Cancel**.

The author of the other event is notified, but cannot forbid you to create an overlapping event.

Examples of Business Processes

You can use business processes to schedule activities within your company. In this chapter, you will see two business processes that allow to schedule common events and resources. We shall concentrate on the process logic instead of the process creation technology. For business process modeling, see the **ELMA BPM Platform quick-start manual**, for document flow in business processes see the **ELMA ECM+ quick-start manual**. All this information is also available in **ELMA Help**.

The first business process is "Organization of meetings".

First, let us see how to organize a meeting and prepare the minutes of meeting without using an information system.

The initiator (or their secretary) notifies all the participants about the date, time, place and theme of the meeting, by means of a phone call and/or e-mail message. At set time, all the participants gather in the meeting room. The meeting secretary prepares the minutes of meeting and send it for approval to all the participants. If necessary, they make corrections to the document and it is sent for approval again. Once approved, the minutes are handed for signature to the head of meeting. Then, the signed original is scanned and send for acquaintance to all the participants and interested employees. The original document is filed in the minutes of meeting folder.

During the meeting, certain issues have been discussed and managed: decisions, tasks, assignment of responsible persons.

Now, let us see how this can all be done with a business process in **ELMA**.

In Fig. 53, you can see a map of the "Organize Meeting" business process.



Fig. 53 "Organize Meeting" business process map

Any of the executives (or their secretary) can start this process in the **ELMA Web Application**. The first task for the process initiator is to schedule the meeting in a common calendar and specify the theme, the secretary, head of meeting and participants. Then the process can be suspended with a timer until the very date of the meeting.

Then the head of meeting holds the meeting and prepares the minutes of meeting – creates a document in **ELMA** and attaches a version (file). The Minutes are sent to all the participants. If the document is not approved, the secretary receives the document back for correction. Once approved, the document is sent to the head of meeting, who signs it and makes a decision on it.

The meeting secretary receives two simultaneous tasks:

- to form tasks according to the minutes of meeting and the decision made;
- to make a list of users who must review the minutes of meeting.

Every user from this list is then assigned with the task to review the document. At the same time, employees receive tasks according to the minutes of meeting, and start working on them.

When everyone has completed their tasks according to the document, the process initiator is notified that the work on the minutes of meeting is done. The process itself is complete.

This process is easily modeled and does not take a lot of time. You can improve it by adding scripts, e.g., to automatically create and complete events in the calendar or create minutes of meeting from a template. You can limit the time allowed for acquaintance, signing and approving documents, and set up task escalation after a certain time.

A business process allows you to organize a meeting, coordinate, sign and fulfill the minutes of meeting according to one scheme. You do not have to use original paper documents. All the minutes of meeting are stored in **ELMA** so you can track completion and verify active tasks at any moment. You can also turn all the paperwork into electronic documentation. This will make your employees' work more organized and productive.

Here is another example of a business process that facilitates scheduling resources: "Request for a bus". Let us say that a certain company has a Transport Department. This Department has several buses; and other departments and divisions make requests to use these buses for business purposes. If an employee wants to order a bus, he or she has to fill in a paper form, get a sign off by their superior and then give it to the Head of Transport Department. The Head of Transport Department considers the request and can either approve or reject it if, for example, there is no bus available for that date. If the employee decides to change the date, they have to fill in a new form, get a sign off and so on.

You can see an example of this business process in Fig. 54.

The request initiator starts a process and fills in all the information: date, time, departure point, purpose, number of passengers, etc. **ELMA** features a calendar available to all users, which only the operator or Head of Transport Department can edit. It is possible to create a periodical event: for example, if you want to bring employees to work every morning, it is better to book this time right away. Before sending the request, you can check the timetable to see if the bus is available at the desired time.



Fig. 54 "Request for Bus Use" business process map

Then the request goes to your superior for approval. They can see all the information included in the request. The superior can make a comment and approve or reject the request, the same as the Head of Transport Department. If the request is rejected, you can correct it according to the comments made, or cancel it.

If the request is approved, it is sent to the Operator, who confirms that the request can be fulfilled and adds information for the driver. A new version of the request is made. The operator prints it out, attaches other required documents and hands it to the driver.

When the request is complete, the initiator must confirm it or notify the Head of Transport Department about any issues. The "Conform request completion" task features a task timer and escalation. That means that if during, say, three days the initiator does not complete this task, the task is considered completed unconditionally. If the request has not been fulfilled, the superior will be assigned with a task to review this issue.

The business process features certain statuses that allow to track the request. The initiator can track their request in the process display, where the Head of Transport Department and the operator see information about all the active processes. It is recommended that the operator places a portlet with all active process instances on the main page. To name tasks, use templates. In a template you can enter all the key information such as date and time, to make it easier to work with. You can improve the process by using scripts, for example, to verify any event overlays in common calendars or to limit available dates (e.g., a request cannot be made later that 2 days before the required date).

A common calendar is very convenient for this business process and for scheduling the bus timetable. It increases the quality of services provided and allows to schedule availability, making it easy to track issues and receive information about requests (both processed and active). All this makes the process a lot faster.

Chapter 7. Time Report and Monitoring

ELMA provides tools to monitor and report the time spent on completing tasks.

At the end of a period (a day, week or month) each user fills in a report, specifying what tasks they have completed and how much time they have spent on them. Then the report is sent for approval to the person who assigned the tasks. The approver can either approve or reject it. At the end, there is a number of approved hours that can be used to calculate the employee's pay.

You can limit the time report feature for just several employees. It is not always applicable, but is useful in the following cases:

- If the salary is based on time (time and materials)
- If you want to make a report on work activity (since the time report is tied to tasks that are completed)
- If you want to see the amount of resources spent on a certain task.

Since an employee might have several tasks at one time (and they cannot work on all of them simultaneously), there might be a significant difference between the time estimated by the system and the time actually spent on the task. That is why the actual time report is submitted by the employees themselves, while the task author verifies the report.

To report the time spent on a task, use the **Time Report** subsection of the **Tasks** section (Fig. 55). It is divided in two parts: **Reports** and **Approval**.

The **Reports** page shows all the time reported by a user and/or their employees. There are several filters by categories. The reports that are currently *pending approval* can be edited or deleted. This page also allows to submit a time report.

The **Approval** page shows information about all the time reports pending approval by the current user. By default, the task/activity author is specified as the approver. On this page, you can view a time report or an activity, ask a question, and reassign time report approval to another user.



Fig. 55. Tasks \rightarrow Time Report \rightarrow Reports section

In Fig. 55 you can see a summary table of all types of activities. Is shows a total number of the time reported, divided by statuses: *Pending Approval, Approved, Rejected*. You can group the data by occupation or by executor. To do so, click **By Occupation** or **By executor** in the top menu.

Configure the Time Report Module

The **Time Report** feature is configured by the administrator:

- Specify the main parameters;
- Set access permission for time report control;
- Specify the list of objects that are used in time reports;
- Fill in the **Occupation** entity, which groups the time reports.

To configure the main time report settings, go to Administrating \rightarrow Basic Applications \rightarrow Tasks \rightarrow Tasks Settings and find Time Report (Fig. 56).

Nov 13 Friday	← Back		9	Administrator
Administration	Tasks Se	ttings		
Main Page	Time Repo	rt		1
🤰 Users	Allow to cre	ate time reports	Yes	
👗 System	Add time re	port limits	No	
🛃 Basic Applications	Limit deadli	ne for submitting time reports with	0	
Common Calendars	hindsight (d	ays)	0	
Tasks	Limit daily ti	me reports (hours)	0	
Public Channels	Require a c	omment when rejecting a time report	Yes	
Reports	Send notific	ations about new approval tasks	Yes	
E Portal Settings	Send notific	ations about approval results	No	
Document Management	Notify when	time reports are edited	No	
🚱 Business Processes	Number of i	tems in time report per day	5	

Fig. 56. Task Settings module, Timer Report section

The **Time Report** section contains several option buttons that you can use to configure the time report settings for your company. Fig. 56 shows default settings. To change them, just click

Description of the settings section:

- Allow to create time reports Activate the time report function in ELMA.
- **Require a comment when rejecting a time report** Give a reason when rejecting a time report.
- Add time report limits You cannot submit more hours than specified in the time report limit.
- Send notifications about new approval tasks Approver receives a notification in their Messages feed about a time report submitted for approval.

- Send notifications about approval results Person who submitted the time report is notified about the approval results in their **Messages** feed.
- Notify when time reports are edited Person submitting the report and the approver are notified in their **Message** feeds about any changes made to the submitted time report.
- Number of items in time report per day Default number of fields available in a time report per each day.

When the basic settings are configured, you need to set access permissions for time report control. Go to **Administration** \rightarrow **Users** \rightarrow **Access Settings** \rightarrow **Global Access Settings** and find the **Tasks** section (Fig. 57).

Global Access Settings									
Search Q Search									
> Administration									
> ELMA Designer									
> Document Management									
✓ Tasks									
> Personal Time Reports Approval									
> Time Reports Administration									
> Access to "Tasks"									
Access to KPIs of all employees from the "Company" section									
> Access to "Resolving Tasks" portlet									
> Access to all tasks									
> Require time reports									
> Create/Edit tasks for a past date									
> Edit the "Shared Filters" tree									
> Edit the "Shared Filters" tree of the "Time Report" section									
> Tasks export									

Fig. 57. Global Access Settings \rightarrow Tasks

The **Tasks** section provides the following permissions for time reports:

- **Personal Time Reports Approval** Specifies groups of users who can approve their own time reports.
- Time Reports Administration Specifies groups of users who have full access to all the time reports in ELMA. When they open their Time Reports → Reports section, the All filter shows them the reports of all employees. They can manage these reports in any way and reject their approval.

• **Require time reports** – Specifies groups of users who are obliged to submit a time report when accomplishing a task. They cannot mark a task as completed until they submit a time report on this task.

ELMA features default groups of users who are allowed to manage time reports. This means that if you want to give corresponding permissions to certain users, you can simply add them to these groups.

After configuring the settings, select the time report object.

Time Report Objects

Time Report Objects are types of system objects on which employees submit their time reports, such as calendar events and tasks. The system administrator can set the time report objects in **Administration** \rightarrow **Basic Application** \rightarrow **Tasks** \rightarrow **Time Report Objects** (Fig. 58)



Fig. 58. Time Report Objects section

Numerous **ELMA** objects can be included as time report objects but, by default, only user tasks are included (as in Fig. 58). You can expand this list and add new types of tasks (for business processes, projects, documents and so on), events, meetings and other objects that are managed within the **ELMA** system.

To add an object to the list, click **Add time report object**. You will see the **Add Time Report Objects** form (Fig. 59). Select the object that you want to add and click on **Add**. To go back to the Time Report Object section without saving changes click **Cancel**.

If you want to delete a time report object from the list, place the mouse over the object name and click the \times icon. The system administrator can add and delete time report objects at any time.

Add Time Report Objects	\times
🗐 🤷 Calendar and Events	
Event	
🔤 🗌 Periodic Calendar Event	
E CRM	
Documents	
🖃 📴 KPI Management	
🖶 🧧 Models	
🖶 🧖 Performance	
🔤 🔂 🔲 Task: Approve Performance Matrix	
🖶 🔁 SMART	
Task: Collect KPI Values	
🖃 🧖 Processes	
Vorkflow Process Task	
Projects+	
Reports	
Report Documents	
🔤 🔂 "Report" Web Document	
Tasks	
····· 🕄 🔲 Question	
Task Base Class	
Add	Cancel

Fig. 59. Add Timer Report Objects form

Once the time report objects are added, users can submit reports on them.

The next step is specifying types of occupation.

Occupation

You can group time reports by occupation. This allows you to evaluate the effective workload and organize it according to the company's development directions. The list of occupations is formed in the **Occupation** entity (Fig. 60). You can open the entity from **Administration** \rightarrow **Basic application** \rightarrow **Tasks** of from the **Task** sections of the **Entities**. By default, this entity is left blank.

0	Nov 13 Friday	← Back	+ Create	Ø	Administra	tor			
Messages		Occupat	ion Occupation						
Tasks		Search				Q Search			
📥 Company		Advanced Se	earch	Quantity: 15	Items found: 2	Pages: 1			
📺 Calendar		Name		All Object Types					
o Processes		Works on exte	rnal projects	Yes		1 ×			
Entities		Works on inter	nal projects	Yes Page generated for 42	277 ms ELMA v. 3.8.0.2	🖍 🗙 3374 R.9ab2f687d2bd58			
AII									

Fig. 60. Occupation entity

The occupation must always specified in time reports, and the reports are divided by occupation. It is important for staff performance analysis, or if billable hours are paid according to occupation.

To create a new type of activity, click **Create** in the top menu, then fill in the form. Enter a name, and specify if the time report objects for this occupation are limited (Fig. 61).

For each occupation type, you can limit the time report objects. Set the **All Object Types** option to **No** and select those time report objects that are available for this type of occupation (Fig. 61). To select an object, click **Add Object Type** and select the checkboxes of the desired objects. To save, click **Select**.

To save the **Occupation** entity, click the **Save** button in the top menu of the creation form. The **Occupation** entity items can be deleted or edited.

Tasks	Tasks		Occupation - Add an item							
Task List		Name *	Financial activities							
Outgoing		All Object Types	🔿 Yes 💿 No							
Search		Object Types *	+ Add Object Type							
💈 Periodic Tasks			Add Object Types 🛛 🗙							
L Time Report		Calendar and Events Calendar and Event Calendar Event CRM Processes Casks Complex Task Complex Task Couestion Calendar Events Task Task Base Class	ent							
			Select Cancel							

Fig. 61. Adding objects to the Occupation entity

If time report objects for this occupation type are not specified, then it is possible to submit time reports for all accessible object.

After you configure all the settings, the time report module is ready for work. In the following chapter, you will learn to add time reports for your tasks and to submit reports for approval.

Adding Time Report for Tasks

ELMA allows you to add a time report for a task that you are currently working on or that you have already accomplished. Submitting time reports is only possible for those objects that are selected by that moment.

To add a time report for a current or completed task, press the **Actions** button and select **Add Time Report Item** in the drop-down menu (Fig. 62). You will see the **Time Report** form where you have to specify the amount of time spent, the timeline (days and/or hours and/or minutes) and the date. You can also make a comment to describe the work accomplished. Then click the **Add** button.

Completed Canno	Actio	ns							9	Adm	inistrato	yr 🗩 🤆	
Server schedu	ed 🕑 Cri 🚷 Re	ate Sub-Ta assign	isk										
About Task	🗐 Ad	d Comment		11/16/201	5) 🖸			Auth	Dr				
Comments	Que 👩 Ta	1 Time Rep (e under Co	ort Item	Actions				Ŗ					
Task created	(Bail			Time F	leport		>	<	Administrator				
Task read by	exec Time on sti Start	Spent * Date *		0 ~	day(s) 0	v hour(s) 0	v minute(s)	Com	Dietion Check Bailey F. Chief of IT-Depa				
								Date of 11/16/ Status	created 2015 8:23 AM s ecuting				
							Add Cancel						

Fig. 62. Adding a time report to a task

All the added time reports are stored in the **Time Report Log** on the page of each task (**Time Report Log** tab, Fig. 63). If there is no time report for the task, then there is no **Time Report Log** on its page.

When a user submits a time report, all the new data from **Time Report Logs** is automatically included and sent for approval.

Nov 13 Friday	Completed Cannot Execute Actions	Administrator		
Tasks				
💼 Task List	About Task Time Report Log			
Incoming		Quantity: 15 V Items found: 1 Pages: 1 5		
Outgoing	Time Spent Start Date 🗸 Comment	Executor		
Periodic Tasks	1 hour(s) 11/13/2015 12:00 AM	Administrator		
L Time Report		Page generated for 6581 ms ELMA v. 3.8.0.23374 R.9ab2f687d2bd58		

Fig. 63. Time Report Log tab

There is another way to add a time report: once you have completed a task (except for business process tasks), click **Completed** in the top menu, and then add a time report in the pop-up window. To do so, open the **Time Report** dashboard in the **Completed** window and specify the date and time spent (Fig. 64).

(Completed	Comple	ted	×	ministrator	\odot	
	New emp	✓ Time Report					
	About Task	Time Spent v day(s) 1 v	nour(s) 0 v minute(s)				
		Start Date • 11/13/2015 🐷 🗸 🗸			1 Pages: 1	G	¢.
	Time Spent	Comment					
	1 hour(s)	Created new user account. Sent the login and password by e-mail					
					:LMA V. 3.8.0.233741		
٢							
		Load Files (not greater than 1000 MB)		~ Q +			
		You can load a file by dragging it to this area					
			Notify co-executors	Completed Cancel			

Fig. 64. Making a time report when having completed a task

The time reports added this way are also logged and submitted for approval.

When you are assigned with a task, you can add a time report at the same time, and it can only be done once. Whereas you can add various time reports while you work on the task or when the task is completed. You can set a time report limit for a task (Fig. 65). Go to the task creation page and press **Time Report Limit** in its top menu. You will see a new filed, **Time Report Limit**. Specify the time limits (Fig. 65). The executor will see this estimated time report in the task page.

Save Activity (KPI) Pro	Eect Control Approver Co-Executors	P eport it	Administrator						
Create Task									
Subject *	Add a new ELMA user								
Executor *	~ 1		\rightarrow \sim						
Start Date *	11/13/2015 🖼 🖸 Specify time								
End Date *	11/13/2015 🖼 🖸 Specify time								
Time Report Limit	day(s) v hour(s) 15 v minute(;)							
Priority	Regular 🗸	_							
	~ Q +								
	Attached Files	Attached Documents	v Q +						

Fig. 65. Time Report Limit for a task

You can also set a time report limit for business process tasks; it is set when a process is modeled in **ELMA Designer** (see **ELMA Help**).

These tasks do not allow you to submit a time report for approval if it exceeds the estimated time input. There will be a comment in red on the time report page saying that the time limit is exceeded.

Such a report can be processed in different ways; it depends on the **Add time report limits** option button in the **Time Report** section of **Administration** \rightarrow **Basic Applications** \rightarrow **Tasks** \rightarrow **Task settings**. If it is set to **No**, the system will simply notify the user that they have exceeded the limit, and will still allow you to submit the report for approval. If it is set to **Yes**, submitting such a report for approval will be impossible.
Submitting a Time Report

If a user has to track the time that they spend on a task, they add time reports to all the tasks that they work on during the day. All the reports are stored in the time report logs. Once a week or once a month, according to the company's policies, employees submit these time reports for approval. Time reports are usually approved by the task authors.

There are several ways to submit a time report:

- Click the **Time Report** button in the top menu of either page in the **Tasks Task List** section;
- Click the Time Report button in the top menu of either page in the Time Report Reports section (Fig. 66);
- In the main menu, click **Time Report.** To open the main menu move your mouse pointer over the **ELMA** logo in the top-left corner of the main page and wait until the blue button appears. This button opens the main menu (Fig.67).

Nov 13 Friday	Time Report By Occupation	By Executor		Administrator
Tasks	Mine			
Task List Periodic Tasks Time Report	Search Show only mine			 ✓ Q Search
Reports All Mine Mine (Pending Approval) Mine (Approved)	Time Report Submitted On	11/01/2015 w to ✓ Use relative dates OM ✓ to	×	
Mine (Rejected)	Occupation Pendin			
	Total 0 m.	0 m. Occupation Plan Fact Ap	o m. pr. Date submitted ✓ Executor	
	No data to display			

Fig. 66. Time Report creation button



Fig.67 Main Menu. Report creation button

Once you do it, a report page for the current week will appear. All the time reported during the week will be displayed (Fig. 68). Any changes that you make in the time report are saved automatically. You can report the time report that you have not reported previously, just select the corresponding week.

If you want to submit a time report for a week other than current, click **Select Week** in the upper menu; then chose the required day and click **Select**.

Send Select Week Selected			2	Admii	nistrator	\odot	
Time Report			← 🧰 16.11.2015	— 22	.11.201	15 -)	•
All changes in the time report are saved automatically. You can add additional time report items at any time. Just open the time report	for a wee	k you need.					×
			Weekly Total: Works on internal pro	9 h. ojects: 9	h.		
> Monday (16.11.2015) Total: 2 h.							
> Tuesday (17.11.2015) Total: 3 h.							
Vednesday (18.11.2015) Occupation			Occupation		Time R	eport	
Server scheduled maintenance Completion Check (Completed On 11/16/2015 5:15 AM)		🕒 🔍 📸	Works on internal projects	~	4:00	h:mm	×
Approver: Bailey F. (change)			Enter Description				
	~	Q 📸		~	0:00	h:mm	×
	~	Q 📸		~	0:00	h:mm	×
	~	Q 📸		~	0:00	h:mm	×
	~	Q 📸		~	0:00	h:mm	×
Works on internal projects: 4 h. Total: 4 h.						+	Add

Fig. 68. Time Report creation page

Here you can add or edit the amount of hours and delete time reports.

To open and close the time report list for a certain day, click on the day that you need.

To add a time report you have to do the following:

1. Chose the day that you want to report.

2. Specify the time report object in the **Occupation** field. There are several ways to select **Occupation**:

- Select it in the drop-down list (only recent activities will be available);
- The Q icon will open a window with time report object (Fig. 68), you can search for tasks over any period;
- Create a new task with the 5 icon (Fig. 68).

		Select a t	ime report object				
Recent Activity	Recent This Month Se	arch Create Task					
Friday Last	Two Weeks Last Two Mo	onths		Quantity: 10 🗸	Items found: 2	Pages: 1	5
Activity Obj	ect					Date	
create a nev Task	w user account 🚺					11/13/2015 11 AM	:27
New employ	/ee onboarding 🚺					11/13/2015 10):29



			Sele	ct a time rep	oort object			>
Recent Activity	Recent This Month	Search	Create Task					
Subject *								
Start Date *		11/13/2015	5 😨 🗌 Sp	ecify time				
End Date *		11/13/2015	5 😨 🗌 Sp	ecify time				
Description								
Time Report		0:00	h:mm					
Time Report App	rover	Administrat	tor ELMA	~	1			
Occupation				~	Q			
				Create a task	with the status:	Completed	Cannot Execute	Start Execution

Fig. 70. Time report object selection window. Create Task tab

When a time report object is selected, it is added to the report. Click **change** on the right of the approver's name to change the approver (Fig. 71). By default, the approver is the activity author.

Y Friday	(13.11.2015)					
	Occupation	Occupation		Time Report		
	create a new user account Task	Q 📸 Works on internal projects	~	1:00	h:mm	×
		Change approver X				
	Approver:	Baldwin Ed (Chief Marketing Officer, Hea 🗸 💄	~	0:00	h:mm	×
			~	0:00	h:mm	×
		Select Cancel	~	0:00	h:mm	×
		✓ Q 100	~	0:00	h:mm	×

Fig. 71. Changing Time Report approver

3. In the **Occupation** field, choose an item from the **Occupation** entity in the drop-down list (Fig. 72).

4. In the **Time Report** field, enter the time spent on the task.

Time reports can be managed in groups. You can assign approvers, delete and specify occupation for several time reports at the same time. For that, select the reports by ticking the checkbox on their left, then click **Selected** in the top menu and choose the action that you want to perform. Then click **Select** (Fig. 72).

Send	Select Week	Selected			2	Admini	istrator	\odot	
Time Re	port	le Assign Approver			← 🥅 16.11.2015 —	- 22.1	11.201	15 ->	
All changes in	n the time report	× Delete	u can add additional time report it	ems at any time.	Just open the time report for a week you n	ieed.			\times
✓ Mondat	Осси у (16.1 Оссира	Cł	nange occupation	Select	Weekly Total: 9 Works on internal project	h. cts: 9 h.	Time R	Report	
× ×	Server scheduled Task Approver: Bailey	l maintenance F. (change)		Q, 强	Works on internal projects		2:00	h:mm	×
	Create 5 user ac Completion Cheo Approver: Bailey	counts for new employees ck (Completed On 11/16/20 F. (change)		G 🔍 👪	Define the occupation		0:00 Specify th number of	h:mm e hours	×

Fig. 72. Selected button. Changing occupation type for a time report.

When the report is filled, send it for approval: click **Send**. If you want to send only selected reports, click **Send Selected Items** in the **Send** button's drop-down list (Fig.73).

Select Week Selected	Administrator
Send Selected Items	← 🔤 09.11.2015 — 15.11.2015 →
All changes in the time report are saved automatic	ally. You can add additional time report items at any time. Just open the time report for a week you need.
> Monday (09.11.2015)	Weekly Total: 6 h. Works on external projects: 2 h.; Works on internal projects: 1 h.

Fig. 73. Buttons for sending a time report for approval

If there are any errors in the report (for example, the occupation is not specified, or you are specified as the approver while you do not have access to approve your own time report), you will see an error notification (Fig. 74); the report will not be sent. Correct all the errors and submit the report again.

	Send	Select Week		Administrator	
	Time Re	eport		← 💼 09.11.2015 — 15.11.2015 →	
	X There a	are empty time report items			
	All changes	in the time report are saved a	tomatically. You can add additional time report items at any time. Just open the time report fi	for a week you need.	×
4	> Monda	ay (09.11.2015)		Weekly Total: 7 h. Works on external projects: 2 h.	
	Y Tuesd				
		create a new user account Task Approver: Bailey F. (change)	Cccup C 😵 Defir Ent	ation Time Report Image: space of the sp	×
		test Task Approver: Bailey F. (change)	Q 📸 🛛 Defir	e the occupation	×

Fig. 75. Time Report error

If you are included in the **Personal Time Report Approval** user group and you specify yourself as approver when submitting a report, a window for confirmation of such reports will appear.

Each report is sent to the person listed as **Approver**. In **Tasks** \rightarrow **Time Report** \rightarrow **Reports** you can track your report, verify its status and edit the reports that are pending approval.

Time Report Approval

Approvers must either approve or reject a time report once they receive it. If the **Send notifications about new approval tasks** option button is set to **Yes**, the approvers receive notifications about new approval tasks (Fig. 76). By clicking on the notification, they can go to **Tasks** \rightarrow **Time Report** \rightarrow **Approval** (Fig. 77).

🕒 (New "Ap	prove Time Report" Task)	() Today 11/13/2015 1:22 PM
Time Report Item	from: Administrator	
Task	Create 5 user accounts for new employees (Works on internal projects; 2 hour(s))	
Task	Server scheduled maintenance (Works on internal projects; 4 hour(s))	
Task	Server scheduled maintenance (Works on internal projects; 2 hour(s))	

Fig. 76. Notification on new time report approval tasks

-		-								
Nov 16 Monday	Approve Reject By Date By Employee		Bailey F.							
Tasks	Approve Reports									
💼 Task List	i The time report is rejected									
💈 Periodic Tasks										
L Time Report	Search	Search								
Reports	Advanced Search									
💊 Approval										
	Administrator									
	Name Name	Date Occupation	Plan Fact Approved Description							
	Create 5 user accounts for new employees Completion Check (Completed On 11/13/2015 1:19 PM)	11/13/2015 Works on internal project	cts 0 m. 2 hour(s) 2:00 h:mm 11/13/2015 - 2 hour(s) 🥑							
	Completion Check (Completed On 11/13/2015 1:19 PM)	11/13/2015 Works on internal project	cts 0 m. 4 hour(s) 4:00 h:mm 11/13/2015 - 4 hour(s) 🥑							
	Completion Check (Completed On 11/13/2015 1:21 PM)	11/13/2015 Works on internal project	cts 0 m. 2 hour(s) 2:00 h:mm 11/13/2015 - 2 hour(s) 🥑							
			Submitted Selected Works on internal projects: 8 h. 0 m. Total: 8 h. 0 m.							

Time reports are approved in **Tasks** \rightarrow **Time Reports** \rightarrow **Approval** (Fig. 77).

Fig. 77. Tasks \rightarrow Time Report \rightarrow Approval

This section shows all the time reports pending approval and provides a brief description. You can organize the list by user (use the **By Employee** button in the upper menu) or by reported days (use the **By Date** button in the upper menu). Below the time report list, you can see a summary table of all the time reports.

To ask a question about a time report pending approval, click the 2 button on the right side of the report.

By clicking on the time report's title, you will open its page (Fig. 77), containing full information about the approval task.

Nov 16 Monday		← Back	Approve	Reject	Actions			Bailey F.	
Tasks	•	Time Re	port - Serv	/er sched	uled main	tenance			
Task List		✓ Informat	ion						
Periodic Tasks Time Report Object		🔊 S	Server scheduled maintenance		Occupation Works on internal projects				
Reports	ts Executor			Admi	Completion Check (Completed On 11/13/2015 1:19 PM)		Time Report Limit	0 m.	
Co Approval	pproval		Della	Pelley C		Time Spent	4 hour(s)		
A My Department		Approver					Approved Time Report	0 m.	
		Status C Pendi Date submitted 11/13/201		😗 P	2 Pending Approval		Modified by	Administrator	
	<			8/2015	Date modified		11/13/2015 1:22 PM		
		✓ Descript	ion						
		11/13/2015 -	4 hour(s)						
Comments Questions					ons				Sort by Date
A time report is created (Administrator 11/13/2015 1.20:11 PM) The time report is sent for approval (Administrator 11/13/2015 1.22:32 PM)									

Fig. 78. Time Report's page

You can reject or approve a time report either on the report's page (Fig. 78) or in the **Approval** section (Fig.), where you can manage several reports at once.

Approving a time report from the report's page. Click **Approve** or **Reject** in the top menu of the time report page (Fig. 77). After clicking **Approve**, you will see a window where you have to specify the number of hours approved (it can differ from the time reported) (Fig. 79). If you click **Reject**, you must specify the reason for rejecting.

	← Back	Approve	Reject	Actions				Bailey F.	
٦	rime Rej	port - Se	erver schedu	lled maintenance					
✓ Information									
Time Report Object Server scheduled maintenance Occupation Works on internal projects Completion Check. (Completed On 11/13/201									
	Fuendar	_		Approved		Report Limit	0 m.		
	Executor	-				Spent	4 hour(s)		
	Approver		Approved *	4:00 h:mm		ved Time Report	0 m.		
	Status			_		ed by	Administrator	r	
<	Date submit	tted		Approve	Cancel	nodified	11/13/2015 1	:22 PM	

Fig. 79. Specifying the number of hours approved

Approving a time report in the Approval section. Select the required reports in the report table. If needed, edit the number of **Approved** hours and then click **Approve** or **Reject** in the top menu of the page. If you click **Reject**, you must specify the reason for rejecting.

If the **Send notifications about approval results** option button in the **Time Report** settings is set at **Yes**, the user who submitted the time report will see a notification in their **Messages** section.

A user with corresponding access permissions can review and change the decision made about a time report. These access permissions are set by the administrator in **Administration** \rightarrow Users \rightarrow Access Settings \rightarrow Global Access Settings \rightarrow Tasks \rightarrow Time Report Administration. Such users can see every other user's time reports in their Tasks \rightarrow Time Reports \rightarrow Reports section in the All filter.

Chapter 8. Company

The **Company** section offers summarized information about all the **ELMA** users and provides quick access to such actions as creating a task, a message or an event. By default, this section is available in the left and the main menus of **ELMA Web Application**.

O Nov 17 Tuesday	Without Metrics Performance Rating Without Metrics Performance Rating Number of Tasks Time Reports Approved Terms Approved	Administrator
	Company Period switch button	← February → 📼
arm and the second seco		~ 1
	All New (0) Birthdays (1) Previous Search	Search/filter form
📕 Company		Users: 27
Calendar	Administrator ELMA	With us since 4/4/2015
O Processes	Active Tasks	
Entities	View Calendar View Calendar Contact Info	· · ·
User data boxes>	•	More 🗸
Reports	Bailey Frank Chief of IT-Decartment. Head of Workshop No. 1	
		With us since 7/16/2015
KPI	Contact Info	~
Projects		

Fig. 80. Example of the Company section

This section features a top menu, period option button (by months), search and/or filter forms for users and user data boxes (Fig. 80).

1. With the **Top menu buttons,** you can set the data boxes to display information about schedule compliance, number of tasks (all tasks and completed tasks) and the total amount of time reported.

2. With the **Period switch button** you can choose, for which period you want the additional data and user data boxes to be displayed.

3. The **Search/filter form** is a quick search and filtering tool, allowing to search users by their full name.

Below the search field, you can find the following filtering buttons:

- **All** All the users;
- **My Department** Only the subordinate employees of the current user (according to the company's organization structure);
- **New** –Employees hired during the selected period;
- **Birthday** –Employees who have birthdays during the current period;

• **Previous Search** – Previously filtered employees (their surname and/or name was typed in the search field).

To search the organization structure, first click the $\stackrel{\checkmark}{=}$ icon on the right side of the search field, and then click $\stackrel{\blacksquare}{=}$. ELMA will offer you a list of all the organization's employees.

4. The User data boxes contain the selected user's personal information and contact data (this panel is collapsed by default), and buttons to create tasks, events or messages. Click **More** to expand the box and see additional information about the schedule compliance and time reported.

In the **Company** section, you can send a message and create a task or an event for a selected group of users. You can select the users in the search field or by left-clicking on their picture. The selected users will be then marked with \checkmark . Then, below the search filed, click on the icon of the action that you want to perform (create a task, event or a message) (Fig. 81). To deselect a user, simply left-click on their picture.

Without Metrics Performance Rating Tasks Time Reports Approved	Administrator
Company All New (7) Birthdays (3) Previous Search In Group: 3 person(s) Task Task Message	← February → 📼 ✓ 🎍
Baldwin Ed Chief Marketing Officer, Head of Marketing Department With us since 3/16/2015 Contact Info	Users 27 Bailey Frank Chief of IT-Department, Head of Workshop No. 1 With us since 2/23/2015 Contact Info
Administrator ELMA 0 / 1 With us since 11/12/2014 Advine Tasks View Calendar Contact Info	Brooks Tom Chief Executive Officer With us since 11/12/2014 Contact Info

Fig. 81. Selected group of users and Task, Event and Message buttons

Chapter 9. Substitutions and Absence Schedule

ELMA allows to manage absence and substitutions of employees.

If an employee is absent for a long time, another employee can substitute them, so that the business processes within the company are not interrupted. In this case, all the tasks of the absent user are automatically delegated to the user who substitutes them; the task author is informed. The tasks that was assigned to the substituted user prior to the date of substitution, are not automatically reassigned to the substitute. To manage substitutions go to Administration \rightarrow Users \rightarrow Substitutions, for more details see ELMA Help and ELMA BPM Platform manual.

The absence schedule does not reassign business process tasks and is used merely for information purposes. If the executor that you want to select when creating a task is absent, you will be informed about it. This notification does not affect the task in any way. An absent user still receives messages, tasks, notifications, etc.

The absence schedule is managed in **Administration** \rightarrow **Users** \rightarrow **Absence Schedule** (Fig. 82) and is accessible for users with access permissions. The access permissions for this section are set in **Administration** \rightarrow **Access Settings** \rightarrow **Global Access Settings** \rightarrow **Absences Administration**. By default, only the system administrator can give access permissions.

Nov 16 Monday	Assign Absence						Adminis	trator	\odot
Administration	Absent Emplo	yees							
Main Page									
🎥 Users	Absent Employee		× 1	Start Date			to		
Users	Status	Active	~	End Date			👿 to		
Groups	Find David								
Substitutions	Find Reset								
Absence Schedule	Absent Employee		Start Date		End Date		Re	ason	
Access Settings	No data to display								
👗 System	<				Page gener	rated for 2514 i	ms ELMA v. 3.8	3.0.23374 R.9	ab2f687d2bd58

Fig. 82. Absence Schedule section

The **Absence Schedule** section (Fig. 82) features a filter form and a list of data created in the configurable absence system.

To enter an absence, click **Assign Absence** (Fig. 82) in the top menu. In the provided absence form (Fig. 83) select the absent user, dates and reason for absence, and click **Save** in the top menu.

Save Cancel	Administrator
Assign Absence	
Absent Employee *	Rodriguez Anne (HR Director, HR Manage 🗸 💄
Start Date *	11/16/2015
End Date *	11/20/2015
Reason *	Business trip to Hong Kong

Fig. 83. Assigning an absence

The entered absence will appear in the absence schedule (Fig. 84). In the entry's context menu, you can delete or edit the entry or assign a substitute.

Assign Absence			Administrator
Absent Employe	ees		
Absent Employee		V 💄 Start Date	to III
Status	Active	 End Date 	to 🕼
Find Reset			
		C	Quantity: 15 🗸 Items found: 2 Pages: 1 🧐 🅸
Absent Employee	Start Date	End Date	Reason
Rodriguez A.	11/16/2015	11/20/2015	Business trip to Hong Kong
Walker S.	11/16/2015	11/23/2015	Vacation leave
 Use Substitution Edit Delete 			Page generated for 1153 ms ELMA v. 3.8.0.23374 R.9ab2f987d2bd58

Fig. 84. List of absent employees

The absence notification only appears on the task creation page when the absent user is selected as executor and assigned with the task (Fig. 85).

Save Activity (KPI) Pr	oject Control Approver Co-Executors	Time Report Limit	Administrator
Create Task			
Subject *	Provide data on new employees		
Executor *			→ ×
Start Date *	Rodriguez Anne HR Director, HR Manager	•	
End Date *	Absent from 11/16/2015 to 11/20/2015 Rogers Alan		
Priority			
Category	Shaw Simon Project Manager		
	Swanson Stuart Deputy CTO	•	
	Attacharl Filas	Attached Documents	
	Load Files (not areater than 1000 MB)	Attached Documents	~ Q +

Fig. 85. Notification on absence when choosing task executor

Chapter 10. Document Storage

Document Storage is a central storage system for electronic documents and folders, allowing to quickly access and manage information, view document history, manage access permissions, etc.

ELMA stores documents in the **Documents** section (Fig. 85) featuring a file storage interface, where documents are stored in folders and subfolders. The folder hierarchy is managed by the system users and forms the entire company's archive. Such a storage system make it easy to search for documents and provides data and document security.

Nov 16 Monday	Document Folder	Actions Selected	Send Table	Administrator
	Shared Folders			
Document Search Records Management Contract Management	You can create a document o you create.	f the File type by dragging files from	n File Explorer to this page. These files will be	a automatically uploaded to the server and attached to the documents $$ X
My Documents	Search			Q Search
Business Proposals	Advanced Search		Qu	uantity: 15 🗸 Items found: 6 Pages: 1 🧐 🚛 🏹 🔅
🕎 1. Pending Approval 	Name		Author	Date created
- 3. Paid	Projects		Administrator	11/12/2014 3:05 PM
Mails	🖉 🗈 Business F	Proposals	Administrator	1/15/2015 3:07 PM
Incoming Mails	📄 🖃 🕎 Invoice Re	gister	Administrator	1/5/2015 2:48 PM
Outgoing Mails	Invoices		Carter A.	2/11/2015 9:56 PM
Projects	🔲 🖃 Mails		Carter A.	2/11/2015 9:57 PM
Archive	🔲 💵 🔚 Sales Dep	artment	Miller A.	1/12/2015 5:58 PM
				Page generated for 7373 ms ELMA v. 3.8.0.23374 R.9ab2f887d2bd58

Fig. 86. Documents \rightarrow Shared Folders section

Learn how to create, configure and use the **ELMA** document storage and manage the documents in the **ELMA ECM+ quick-start manual**. It features the basic **ELMA ECM+** capabilities for organizing electronic document management in a company. For more details, see **ELMA Help**.

The document storage is included in **ELMA**, while records management, classification scheme and document routing are only available with **ELMA ECM+**.

Chapter 11. CRM

For customer relationship management, **ELMA** offers the **CRM** section (Fig. 87), divided into several subsections.

\mathbf{O}	Nov 16 Monday	Add Selected					Brooks T. S 🕄 🔎 💌
arm 🔁 CRM		Contractors					
Contractors		Search					Search Show only mine
🗄 📩 Shared Filters		Object Type	Contractor	~			
		Advanced Search					
					Quantity: 5 🗸	Items found: 24 Pages:	1 2 3 4 5 🗐 🗐 🏟
		Name	Туре	Industry	Regional Group	Responsible	Web Site
		One Vision Housing	Customer	Banking / Credit Services	Sweden	Miller A	onevision com
							Une water to the other
		Core Media	Customer	Telecommunications	Denmark	Taylor E.	mediacore.com
		Core Media Abakion	Customer Customer	Telecommunications Professional Services	Denmark North Carolina, USA	Taylor E. Taylor E.	mediacore.com adbkn@gmail.com
		Core Media Abakion Micron Electronics	Customer Customer Customer	Telecommunications Professional Services Production - Electronics	Denmark North Carolina, USA Ireland	Taylor E. Taylor E. Taylor E.	mediacore.com adbkn@gmail.com om.com
	Edit	Core Media Abakion Micron Electronics Middelfart Sparekasse	Customer Customer Customer Customer	Telecommunications Professional Services Production - Electronics Banking / Credit Services	Denmark North Carolina, USA Ireland Denmark	Taylor E. Taylor E. Taylor E. Collins E.	mediacore.com adbkn@gmail.com om.com ms.com
2 Contacts	Edit	Core Media Abakion Micron Electronics Middelfart Sparekasse	Customer Customer Customer Customer	Telecommunications Professional Services Production - Electronics Banking / Credit Services	Denmark North Carolina, USA Ireland Denmark	Taylor E. Taylor E. Taylor E. Collins E. Page generated for 1871	mediacore.com adbkn@gmail.com om.com ms.com ms ELMA v. 3.8.0 23374 R.9ab2/85742bd58
Contacts Leads	Edit	Core Media Abakion Micron Electronics Middelfart Sparekasse	Customer Customer Customer Customer	Telecommunications Professional Services Production - Electronics Banking / Credit Services	Denmark North Carolina, USA Ireland Denmark	Taylor E. Taylor E. Taylor E. Collins E. Page generated for 1871	mediacore.com adbin@gmail.com om.com ms.com ms.ELMA v. 3.8.0.23374 R.9ab2f88742bd88
 Contacts Leads Inpayments 	Edit	Core Media Abakion Micron Electronics Middelfart Sparekasse	Customer Customer Customer	Telecommunications Professional Services Production - Electronics Banking / Credit Services	Denmark North Carolina, USA Ireland Denmark	Taylor E. Taylor E. Taylor E. Collins E. Page generated for 1871	mediacore.com adbin@gmail.com om.com ms.com ms.ELMA v. 3.8.0 23374 R 9ab2/68742bd58

Fig. 87. CRM section

There are certain **CRM** functions that are available in **ELMA** without the **ELMA CRM+** application:

- Schedule phone calls, meetings, letters, and record their results;
- Keep a database of leads and contractors;
- Manage contacts;
- Handle deals;
- Schedule incoming payments;
- Configure and manage the sales funnel;
- Marketing (a list of marketing activities, performance analysis);
- Using CRM elements in business processes.

With **CRM+**, the following features also become available:

- Active sales funnel (triggers business processes when a deal stage is changed);
- Sales dynamics analysis (Deal Dynamics);
- Integration with IP-telephony.

Read the **ELMA CRM+ quick-start manual** for more information on configuration and **CRM** use cases in **ELMA**. It describes the basic features of **ELMA CRM+** for customer relationship management within a company. For even more details, see **ELMA Help**.

Chapter 12. Web Portal Customization

ELMA features flexible user interfaces that can be customized without programming. To make the **Web Application** easier to work with, we recommend using various interfaces that provide only those functions that users need for their work.

You can find information about how to customize the **Web Application** and create and use interfaces in the **ELMA BPM Platform quick-start manual**. For more details, see **ELMA Help**.

Chapter 13. Useful References

Apart from the **ELMA Web Portal quick-start manual**, the following resources also describe basic functions of **ELMA** applications:

- User Manual of **ELMA BPM**
- User Manual of ELMA ECM+
- User Manual of ELMA CRM+
- User Manual of **ELMA Projects+**
- User Manual of **ELMA KPI**

These manuals describe the key features of **ELMA**. For a detail description of functions, see **ELMA Help**.

References on each application are divided into three categories: for end-users, for implementation and for administrator, which allows for quick search of information.

On the **ELMA website** <u>http://www.elma-bpm.com/</u> you can find the general description and purchase conditions of **ELMA** applications. You can also press the **Ask Question** button to ask us a question.

The **online demo version** features all the basic functions of **ELMA**. You can find it on our website <u>http://www.elma-bpm.com/</u>. If you want to learn more about either application, you can download a demo version with exactly the same settings as the online version. It is available on the same page.

We continuously develop **ELMA** and its Platform-based components that deal with more specific tasks. You can find a list of these components and purchase conditions on **ELMA Store**: <u>http://store.elma-bpm.com/</u>

If you want to develop your own solutions, you will find the **ELMA Knowledge Base** rather useful: <u>http://www.elma-bpm.com/kb.</u>

If you are experiencing technical difficulties, please visit **ELMA technical support website**: <u>http://support.elma-bpm.com</u>.

If you need assistance with the system or have a question about partnership with **ELMA**, please contact us:

• Luxemburg: + (353) 20-30-11-40